
 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGENDA PACKET 

 
Regular Meeting  

Wednesday, March 15, 2017 

 

7:00 P.M. Regular Meeting 

 
Community Center 

1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  

A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

      President – Robert Leete • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director – Bill Pease • Director – Chris Steele 



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for March 15, 2017 - Pg.1 

 

          
 

 
 
 
           
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday March 15, 2017 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda.  The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration.  Any person wishing to speak must come up and speak from the podium 
and will have 3 minutes to make their comment.  There will be no dialog between the Board and the 
commenter.  Any clarifying questions from the Board must go through the President. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approval of regular and closed session minutes for March 1, 2017 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices 
3. Approval of the addition to the Parks and Recreation Event Calendar for 2017 
4. Approve the adoption of Resolution No. 2017-05 and the Records Retention Schedules 
5. Adopt and Present Proclamation 17-02 thanking and honoring Fire Chief Hugh Henderson for his many 

years of public safety service and congratulate him on his retirement 
 

D. AREA AGENCIES REPORTS / PRESENTATION 
1. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report 
 

E. MONTHLY WATER AND WASTEWATER REPORT – VEOLIA 
1. Veolia Report – Month of February 2017 
 

F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. Annual Audited Financial Statements: Receive report from the District’s Auditor and consider approving 

the FY 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements. 
2. Discussion and consideration to approve the agreement with Urban Futures Inc. to provide the District 

with both Continuing Disclosure and Dissemination Agent Services. 
3. Discussion and possible action related to the letter sent regarding Re-allocate ad valorem property 

taxes as requested by the East Contra Costa Fire Protection District. 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Robert Leete • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director – Bill Pease • Director – Chris Steele 
 

 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for March 15, 2017 - Pg.2 

 

 
G.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY 
 
H. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS 

1. Standing Committee Reports 
2. Other Reportable Items 

 
I. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
J. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 

1. Received February 22, 2017 from Special District Risk Management Authority – Workers’ 
Compensation Longevity Distribution. 

2. Received March 6, 2017 - Interim Fire Chief Helmick Press Release. 
 

L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
  
M.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the regular meeting on April 5, 2017 beginning at 7:00 a.m. at the Community Center located 
at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  
 

 
 
 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925)634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least twenty-four hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for March 1, 2017 - Pg.1 

 

 

          
 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday March 1, 2017 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. – By President Leete 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by President Leete 
3. Roll Call – All present with the exception of Director Pease and Director Steele 
4. Director Steele arrived at 7:13 p.m. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
 Public Comments Regarding: 

 Traffic issues and the results of the survey from the Contra Costa County Traffic Engineer. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approval of DRAFT minutes of regular and closed session meeting for February 15, 2017 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices  
Motion by: Vice-President Graves to approve the Consent Calendar 
Second by: Director Mayer 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 3 – President Leete, Vice-President Graves, Director Mayer; NOES: 0; 
ABSENT: 2 – Director Pease, Director Steele 
 

D. AREA AGENCIES REPORTS / PRESENTATION 
1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report - Alicia Nuchols Field Representative introduced County 

Traffic Engineer, Monish Sen 
a. County Traffic Engineer, Monish Sen – speed and traffic update – County Traffic Engineer, 

Monish Sen provided an update related to the Traffic Survey regarding data with 
percentages of excessive speeding on streets within Discovery Bay.  There was discussion 
regarding the traffic survey and a request from the Board for a copy to be emailed. 

2. Sheriff’s Office Report – Resident Deputy Ingersoll - Provided a law enforcement update for the month 
of February.  

3. CHP Report – Officer Thomas provided an update for the month of February regarding the citations. 
Also provided an update related to the radar system for Discovery Bay. 

 
E. LIAISON REPORTS 

1. Trans-Plan Report – No report 
2.   County Planning Commission Report – No report 
3. Code Enforcement Report – No report 
4. Special Districts Report** – No report 
 
**These meetings are held Quarterly 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Robert Leete • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director – Bill Pease • Director – Chris Steele 
 

 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for March 1, 2017 - Pg.2 

 

 

 
F. PRESENTATIONS 

None 
 

G. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. 2017 Enterprise Bond Update – Finance Manager Breitstein provided an update regarding the 2017 

Enterprise Bond for the Filtration Project and the Water Meter Project, along with the Audit being 
included in the bond data.  The DRAFT Audit will be presented at the March 15, 2017 to be approved at 
that meeting. 

Public Comment Regarding: 

 The use of Marks-Roos Bonds. 
2. Bi-Monthly Water Meter Completion Report Update – Finance Manager Breitstein presented a 

PowerPoint related to the Water Meter Completion update and Phase I.  There was discussion regarding 
Phase I and the Type 1 and Type 2 installations. Type 3 installations are more difficult and will be moved 
to the end of Phase I. 

Public Comment Regarding: 

 A Prop 218 along and opting out of a Smart Meter. 
Legal Counsel Attebery – Stated there was a response provided to the Public Commenter regarding a Prop 
218 and opting out of a Smart Meter; staff is working on “opting out” of the Smart Meter and the billing 
process for that line item. 

 
The discussion continued regarding contaminated water entering into the homes – Town staff is taking care 
of the “backwash” process through the hose bib after the installation of all new meters. 

 
H. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 None 
 
I.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY  
 None 
 
J. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS  

1. Standing Committee Reports – No report 
2. Other Reportable Items – No report  

 
K. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 None 
 
L. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED  

1. Received Date February 15, 2017 - from Special District Risk Management Authority – Property and 
Liability Program Rate Information. 

2. Received Date February 21, 2017 – from Charles W. Helfrick – PRR – For additional documents 
regarding District Invoices. 

3. Received Date February 22, 2017 – from Charles W. Helfrick – PRR – For invoice documents approved 
from the February 15, 2017 District Invoices. 

4. Received Date February 22, 2017 – from California Special District Association regarding nominations 
for Seat C and Seat A. 

Public Comment Regarding L-3: 

 Documents that have been received along with requesting reiteration of the General Manager 
Recruitment costs. 

. Legal Counsel Attebery – Stated that there are no further documents responsive to the General Manager 
Recruitment costs. 

 
M. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 Revisit the letter sent related to supporting alternative property tax regarding the East Contra Costa Fire 
Protection District. 

 
The regular meeting adjourned at 7:43 p.m. to the Closed Session. 

 
N.  OPEN SESSION DISCLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION AGENDA  

(Government Code Section 54957.7) 
 Legal Counsel Attebery – The Board is now adjourning into closed session regarding item O-1. 
 

Agenda Item C-1



 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for March 1, 2017 - Pg.3 

 

 

 
O. CLOSED SESSION: 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel—Anticipated Litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(b) - (One Potential Case)  
 

Legal Counsel Attebery – Provided the details regarding the Bond that is being offered to the Public 
Financing Authority is a Marks-Roos Bond, however, not a Bond or a requirement that is either Mello-Roos 
or one that requires a vote of the public. 

 
P. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION; REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

(Government Code Section 54957.1)  
Legal Counsel Attebery – Reporting from Closed Session on item O-1 and there is no reportable action. 

 
Q. ADJOURNMENT     

1. The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. to the next regular meeting of March 15, 2017 beginning at 7:00 
p.m. at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
 
//cmc – 03-03-17 
http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes 
 
 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes


 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 15, 2017 

 
Prepared By:   Dina Breitstein, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By:    Mike Davies, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 679,458.13 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2016/2017 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Discovery Bay Lighting & Landscape District # 8 2016/2017 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Discovery Bay Lighting & Landscape District # 9 2016/2017 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: C-2 

Cinderella
Stamp



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount

Contra Costa County Reimbursement

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 Landscape Reimb (Z57) 02/28/17 $108.09

Neumiller & Beardslee 282274 General Service Jan 2017 (Z57,Z61) 01/31/17 $1,383.50

Tee Janitorial & Maintenance 8673 Janitorial Service Feb 2017 (Z57,Z61) 02/17/17 $80.00

Contra Costa County Sub-Total $1,571.59

Water

Alhambra 13710019 021717 Bottle Water Service 02/17/17 $9.46

American Retrofit Systems 1237 Building Maintenance 02/17/17 $70.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33285 IT Support 02/21/17 $70.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33285 Computer Supplies & Equipment 02/21/17 $73.78

Big Dog Computer BDC33288 IT Support 02/21/17 $521.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33289 IT Support 02/21/17 $373.84

Big Dog Computer BDC33291 IT Support 02/23/17 $77.64

Big Dog Computer BDC33292 IT Support 02/26/17 $104.00

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 Building Maintenance 02/28/17 $22.63

CaliforniaChoice Benefit Admin 2635953/53040 Health Insurance Mar 2017 02/24/17 $4,743.07

Cash FEB 2017 Petty Cash Reimb July 2016-Feb 2017 02/28/17 $15.55

Cintas 185592315 Mats 02/15/17 $6.86

Cintas 185593303 Mats 02/22/17 $6.86

Costco 344773867 Membership 02/21/17 $44.00

County of Contra Costa Public Works Dept 700890 Encroachment Permits 02/16/17 $1,608.75

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec 10845 Data Processing Charges Jan 2017 02/16/17 $19.80

HD Supply Waterworks, LTD G660266 Water Meter Project, Utility Box and Lid 01/26/17 $2,429.87

HD Supply Waterworks, LTD G771107 Water Meter Box Lid 02/16/17 $77.60

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2 Water Meter Installation Project 02/20/17 $109,431.28

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2749 Water Leak Prestwick Dr 02/22/17 $10,579.64

Lesley Marable FEB 2017 Expense Report Feb 2017 03/03/17 $31.14

MailFinance N6398619 Quarterly Lease Postage Machine 02/13/17 $111.83

Neumiller & Beardslee 282274 Water Meter Jan 2017 01/31/17 $8,238.00

Neumiller & Beardslee 282274 General Service Jan 2017 01/31/17 $7,413.58

Office Depot 906632109001 Office Supplies 02/20/17 $174.37

Office Team 47802465 Water Meter Project Temporary 02/23/17 $427.20

Paul E. Vaz Trucking, Inc. 47367 Material 02/06/17 02/06/17 $736.16

Paul E. Vaz Trucking, Inc. 47368 Freight 02/06/17 02/06/17 $819.58

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company #JR52 457(B) 031517 457(b) 03/01/17-03/15/17 03/01/17 $388.28

Ricoh USA, Inc 5047137118 Photocopier 02/16/17 $178.81

SDRMA 22496 Ancillary Benefits Mar 2017 02/24/17 $572.00

Suzanne Figlia Aberdeen Ln Closed Account, Refund Overpayment 02/28/17 $9.48

Tee Janitorial & Maintenance 8673 Janitorial Service Feb 2017 02/17/17 $285.60

Thomas Olwell Cambridge Dr Closed Account, Refund Overpayment 02/22/17 $34.63

Upper Case Printing, Ink. 11587 Office Supplies 02/13/17 $322.50

Upper Case Printing, Ink. 11598 Office Supplies 02/13/17 $92.50

Upper Case Printing, Ink. 11605 Office Supplies 02/16/17 $13.90

Van De Pol Enterprises, Inc. 0583247-IN Diesel Delivery 02/23/17 $524.33

Veolia Water North America 66083 Monthly O&M Fee Mar 2017 03/01/17 $51,250.12

Zee Medical Service Company 724601773 Safety Supplies 03/02/17 $22.93

Water Sub-Total $201,932.57

Wastewater

Alhambra 13710019 021717 Bottle Water Service 02/17/17 $14.20

American Retrofit Systems 1237 Building Maintenance 02/17/17 $105.00

American Retrofit Systems 1238 WWTP#2 Equipment Maintenance 02/21/17 $125.00

Auburn Constructors Inc. 1505-009 WWTP#2 Effluent Filtration 02/28/17 $333,079.50

Big B Lumber 451991 PGE Funded Pool Equipment Shed 02/24/17 $59.82

Big Dog Computer BDC33285 IT Support 02/21/17 $105.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33285 Computer Supplies & Equipment 02/21/17 $110.66

Big Dog Computer BDC33287 IT Support 02/21/17 $65.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33288 IT Support 02/21/17 $781.50

Big Dog Computer BDC33289 IT Support 02/21/17 $560.75

Big Dog Computer BDC33291 IT Support 02/23/17 $116.45

Big Dog Computer BDC33292 IT Support 02/26/17 $156.00

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices  (RFA)

For The Meeting On March 15, 2017 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD

For Fiscal Year’s 7/16 - 6/17

Agenda Item C-2



Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 General Repairs 02/28/17 $12.25

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 PGE Funded Pool Equipment Shed 02/28/17 $707.28

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 Building Maintenance 02/28/17 $33.94

CaliforniaChoice Benefit Admin 2635953/53040 Health Insurance Mar 2017 02/24/17 $7,114.61

Cash FEB 2017 Petty Cash Reimb July 2016-Feb 2017 02/28/17 $23.32

Cintas 185592315 Mats 02/15/17 $14.20

Cintas 185592315 Uniforms 02/15/17 $10.30

Cintas 185593303 Mats 02/22/17 $14.20

Cintas 185593303 Uniforms 02/22/17 $10.30

Costco 344773867 Membership 02/21/17 $66.00

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec 10845 Data Processing Charges Jan 2017 02/16/17 $29.70

Lesley Marable FEB 2017 Expense Report Feb 2017 03/03/17 $46.70

MailFinance N6398619 Quarterly Lease Postage Machine 02/13/17 $167.74

Neumiller & Beardslee 282274 General Service Jan 2017 01/31/17 $11,872.86

Office Depot 906632109001 Office Supplies 02/20/17 $261.56

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company #JR52 457(B) 031517 457(b) 03/01/17-03/15/17 03/01/17 $582.43

Ricoh USA, Inc 5047137118 Photocopier 02/16/17 $268.21

SDRMA 22496 Ancillary Benefits Mar 2017 02/24/17 $858.01

Tee Janitorial & Maintenance 8673 Janitorial Service Feb 2017 02/17/17 $428.40

Van De Pol Enterprises, Inc. 0583247-IN Diesel Delivery 02/23/17 $786.49

Veolia Water North America 66083 Monthly O&M Fee Mar 2017 03/01/17 $76,875.19

Zee Medical Service Company 724601773 Safety Supplies 03/02/17 $34.40

 

Wastewater Sub-Total $435,496.97

Grand Total $639,001.13

Agenda Item C-2



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount

Zone 8
Big Dog Computer BDC33290 IT Support 02/21/17 $170.00

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 Misc. Small Tools 02/28/17 $11.69

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 Personal Protective Equipment 02/28/17 $92.60

Cintas 185592315 Uniforms 02/15/17 $48.24

Cintas 185593303 Uniforms 02/22/17 $53.90

Comcast 8155400350357156/217 Internet Service 02/15/17 $160.24

Sheredan Hart MAR 2017 Personal Protective Equipment 03/01/17 $150.00

Tee Janitorial & Maintenance 8673 Janitorial Service Feb 2017 02/17/17 $720.00

Town Of Discovery Bay CSD 508 Payroll Reimbursement Jan 2017 03/07/17 $30,081.08

Total $31,487.75

Community Center
Alhambra 13710019 021717 Community Center-Bottle Water Service 02/17/17 $44.61

Big Dog Computer BDC33290 Community Center-IT Support 02/21/17 $213.75

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 Community Center-Landscape Maintenance 02/28/17 $89.38

Cintas 185592315 Community Center-Mats 02/15/17 $53.90

Cintas 185593303 Community Center-Mats 02/22/17 $53.90

Comcast 8155400350238372/217 Community Center-Internet Service 02/22/17 $172.14

Denalect Alarm Company R43967 Community Center-Quarterly Alarm Charge 03/01/17 $96.00

Discovery Bay Disposal 17-0013218/022817 Community Center-Com 3 Yd 02/28/17 $444.66

Discovery Pest Control 204330 Community Center-Pest Control 02/22/17 $99.00

Express Labs Inc. 74688 Community Center-Employment Screening3 03/01/17 $60.00

Karina Dugand 41 Community Center-Program Fees 02/28/17 $891.00

Leslie's Pool Supplies, Inc. 27-352431 Community Center-Pool Chemicals 03/03/17 $513.10

Leslie's Pool Supplies, Inc. 27-352688 Community Center-Pool Chemicals 03/07/17 $288.40

Monica Gallo MAR 2017 Community Center-Expense Report Mar 2017 03/02/17 $96.33

Tee Janitorial & Maintenance 8673 Community Center-Janitorial Service Feb 2017 02/17/17 $260.00

Zee Medical Service Company 724601772 Community Center-Safety Supplies 03/02/17 $127.52

Total $3,503.69

Grand Total $34,991.44

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices  (RFA)

For The Meeting On March 15, 2017

Town of Discovery Bay, D.Bay L&L Park #8

For Fiscal Year’s 7/16 - 6/17

Agenda item C-2



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount

Bill Brandt Ford 159118 Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 02/23/17 $149.85

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/022817 Landscape Maintenance 02/28/17 $106.49

Cintas 185592315 Uniforms 02/15/17 $55.08

Cintas 185593303 Uniforms 02/22/17 $75.27

Tee Janitorial & Maintenance 8673 Janitorial Service Feb 2017 02/17/17 $280.00

Town Of Discovery Bay CSD 507 Payroll Reimbursement Jan 2017 03/07/17 $4,603.44

Williams Sanitary Service 29579 Toilet Rental Aug 2016 Ravenswood 09/09/16 $195.43

Total $5,465.56

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices   (RFA)

For The Meeting On March 15, 2017

Town of Discovery Bay, D.Bay L&L Park #9 (Ravenswood)

For Fiscal Year’s 7/16 - 6/17

Agenda Item C-2



 

 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 15, 2017 
 

 
Prepared By:      Mac Kaiser, Recreation Programs Supervisor 
Submitted By:    Mike Davies, General Manager  
 
 
Agenda Title 
 

2017 Parks and Recreation Event Calendar - Addition of Chamber of Commerce Food Truck Round Up 
  
 
Recommended Action 
 

Approve the addition of the Discovery Bay Chamber of Commerce Food Truck Round Up Event to the currently 
approved Parks and Recreation Event Calendar for 2017. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 

On February 15, 2017 staff submitted the 2017 Parks and Recreation Event Calendar listing a variety of community-
wide events to be held at the Discovery Bay Community Center.   
 
On February 15, 2017, the 2017 Parks and Recreation Event Calendar was approved. 
 
Staff is now submitting for your approval an additional event to be added to the approved 2017 Parks and Recreation 
Event Calendar. This event is sponsored by the Discovery Bay Chamber of Commerce and is entitled “Food Truck 
Roundup”.  This community-wide, family friendly activity will be held on the second Wednesday of each month (April – 
September) from 4PM to 8PM and will feature an “Off the Grid” style event featuring a variety of unique, gourmet dinner 
and dessert trucks, live, light music, vendor’s booths, and alcohol sales on site.  Attendance is anticipated to be 200-400 
guests in a picnic style atmosphere at which the Chamber will charge admission.  Additionally, the Discovery Bay 
Chamber of Commerce will pay the regular and normal Town Facility Rental Fees for use of the facilities, and will be 
responsible for obtaining all additional and necessary permits at their expense as required by the Town.  
 
Staff, therefore recommends the addition of the Discovery Bay Chamber of Commerce Food Truck Round Up Event to 
the currently approved 2017 Parks and Recreation Event Calendar.  A revised 2017 Parks and Recreation Event 
Calendar is attached for your review.       
 
All events are subject to the terms and conditions in the Park Usage Rental Policy (Policy #013) and District Recreation 
Facilities Alcohol Policy (Policy #022).  Both Policies are attached. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ N/A 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:     (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
N/A 
 
 
Attachments 
 

Addition to the Approved 2017 Public Event Calendar 
Board Policies #013 and #022. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: C-3 

Cinderella
Stamp



 2017 Public/Town Calendar - Revised 3/15/2017

2017 Event 

Dates Times Location Event Title Event Description

Approximate                 

Attendance 

Numbers

Event 

Sponsors

Vendors 

on site

Food on 

site

Alcohol 

on site

Town/County Licenses 

Required Fees Charged/Waived

April 12
3:00-

9:00PM
DBCC Food Truck Round-Up

Family friendly event.  "Off the Grid" style 

event featuring a variety of 

unique/gourment dinner trucks, live music 

and vendor booths.  

200-400

Discovery Bay 

Chamber of 

Commerce

Yes Yes Yes

TODB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health permit                

ABC License  ECCFPD 

Event Permit

Fees Charged

April 15 7-12PM DBCC Easter Egg Hunt DB Lions Club Easter Egg Hunt 400+ DB Lions Club No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Waived

April 18
3:30-

5:30PM
DBCC

Childrens Program - 

Python Ron
Family friendly event 60

Town 

Event/Brentw

ood Library 

Joint Event

No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Waived

May 10
3:00-

9:00PM
DBCC Food Truck Round-Up

Family friendly event.  "Off the Grid" style 

event featuring a variety of 

unique/gourment dinner trucks, live music 

and vendor booths.  

200-400

Discovery Bay 

Chamber of 

Commerce

Yes Yes Yes

TODB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health permit                

ABC License  ECCFPD 

Event Permit

Fees Charged

June 3
8AM-

11PM
DBCC Concert in the Park

Family friendly event featuring live music, 

food and alcohol in partnership with the DB 

Lions Club.  

350+

Town & DB 

Lions Joint 

Event

Yes Yes Yes

TODB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health Permit               ABC 

License  

Fees Waived/Lions to donate 

proceeds back to Town for 

specific Park/Facility project

June 9, 16, 23
6:30-

10:30PM
DBCC

Friday Night Movie in the 

Park 

Family friendly movies on the event lawn at 

the Community Center
50-125 Town Event No Yes No

CCC Health Permit  Movie 

Licensing

N/A                                           

Town Event

June 14
3:00-

9:00PM
DBCC Food Truck Round-Up

Family friendly event.  "Off the Grid" style 

event featuring a variety of 

unique/gourment dinner trucks, live music 

and vendor booths.  

200-400

Discovery Bay 

Chamber of 

Commerce

Yes Yes Yes

TODB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health permit                

ABC License  ECCFPD 

Event Permit

Fees Charged

July 7, 21, 28
6:30-

10:30PM
DBCC

Friday Night Movie in the 

Park

Family friendly movies on the event lawn at 

the Community Center
50-125 Town Event No Yes No

CCC Health Permit  Movie 

Licensing

N/A                                           

Town Event

July 12
3:00-

9:00PM
DBCC Food Truck Round-Up

Family friendly event.  "Off the Grid" style 

event featuring a variety of 

unique/gourment dinner trucks, live music 

and vendor booths.  

200-400

Discovery Bay 

Chamber of 

Commerce

Yes Yes Yes

TODB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health permit                

ABC License  ECCFPD 

Event Permit

Fees Charged

July 14
7PM-

10PM
DBCC Evening Cool by the Pool

Family friendly evening swim and music 

under the stars
50 Town Event No No No TODB Facility Permit

N/A                                           

Town Event

August 9
3:00-

9:00PM
DBCC Food Truck Round-Up

Family friendly event.  "Off the Grid" style 

event featuring a variety of 

unique/gourment dinner trucks, live music 

and vendor booths.  

200-400

Discovery Bay 

Chamber of 

Commerce

Yes Yes Yes

TODB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health permit                

ABC License  ECCFPD 

Event Permit

Fees Charged

Sept 10 8AM-8PM DBCC Car Show
Classic, Hot Rod, Motorcycle Car show, 

food/beer, and vendors
300-400 DB Lions Yes Yes Yes

TODB Facility Permit         

CCC Health Permit               

ABC License

Fees Charged

September 

13

3:00-

9:00PM
DBCC Food Truck Round-Up

Family friendly event.  "Off the Grid" style 

event featuring a variety of 

unique/gourment dinner trucks, live music 

and vendor booths.  

200-400

Discovery Bay 

Chamber of 

Commerce

Yes Yes Yes

TODB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health permit                

ABC License  ECCFPD 

Event Permit

Fees Charged

September 

23

8:00AM - 

8:00PM
DBCC Summerfest

Kids zone, possible car show, business 

vendors, food vendors, concert and petting 

zoo.  Alcohol Sales

500-1,000 DB Lions Yes Yes Yes

TPDB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health Permit  ABC Permit  

ECCFPD

Fees Charged

Oct TBD DBCC

Second Annual 

Scarecrow Festival & 

Movie in the Park

Week long family friendly scarecrow building 

contest with a Movie in the Park on the last 

day.

50-75 Town Event No No No
Town Event                           

Movie Licensing

N/A                                           

Town Event

Dec TBD DBCC Holiday Parade
Judging, Breakfast with Santa, vendors for 

event located in the CC parking lot
1000+

DB Lions/      

Chamber of 

Commerce 

Joint Event

Yes Yes No

TODB Facility Permit  CCC 

Health Permit  ECCFPD 

Event Permit

Fees Waived

Agenda Item C-3



 
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District   

Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 10/19/2016 

Adopted – 04-20-2011 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
I.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 The Park & Facility Usage and Rental Policy outlines specific regulations and requirements associated 
with the permitted rental of a public facility and/or area within the Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Services District (District) owned or operated park.  Obtaining a permit shall grant the user basic usage 
and access rights for the approved purpose and time only.  Any fees or deposits established by the 
District Board of Directors shall be paid by the applicant prior to the approval of the permit.  All users 
shall comply with County, State and Federal laws. 

 
 The District reserves the right to cancel, revoke or suspend any and all reservations, permits and 

applications if deemed inappropriate, flagrantly disrespectful or if harmful activities are taking place in 
the park or facility.  No notice is required and, in some cases, the Sheriff will be notified and 
enforcement action will be requested. Violations of this policy may result is forfeiture of fees and/ or 
deposit. 

 
 Facilities and parks available for rental include: 

 
1.      Cornell Park, Tennis Court 
2. Cornell Park, Pickle Ball Courts 
3. Cornell Park, Baseball Field 
4. Cornell Park, Soccer Field 
5. Cornell Park, Shaded Picnic Area 
6. Cornell Park, Horse Shoe Pits or Bocce Courts 
7. Ravenswood Park, Covered Picnic Area 1 
8. Ravenswood Park, Covered Picnic Area 2 
9. Ravenswood Park, Soccer Field 
10. Community Center, Tennis Court(s) 
11. Community Center, BBQ Area 
12. Community Center, Reception Area 
13. Community Center, Arts and Crafts/Meeting Room 
14. Community Center, Multi-Purpose Room 
15. Community Center, Event lawn 
16. Community Center, Swimming Pool 
 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
 

  
Program Area: 

Parks and Landscaping 
 

  Date Established: 
April 20, 2011 

  

Policy Name: 
Park & Facility Usage & Rental 

Policy 
 
  

  Date Amended: 
October 19, 2016 

  

Policy Number: 
013 

  

Resolution: 
2016-17 

  

Agenda item C-3



 
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District   

Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 10/19/2016 

Adopted – 04-20-2011 
 

 

 
 
II.  ELIGIBILITY & PRIORITY 

 The District reserves the right to exclude or remove activities it deems inappropriate for public use.  
District business will take precedence over any and all other meetings.  Groups that have a reservation 
in advance are subject to cancellations, in rare circumstances, to accommodate this priority.  All fees will 
be returned to the user if the District requires a cancellation or relocation of the reserved event. 

 
 In issuing permits, priority shall be given to Discovery Bay residents and events serving the Discovery Bay 

community.   
 

III. RESERVATION REQUIREMENTS 
 The renter must be over 18 years of age, and submit a complete Reservation Form to the Community 

Center, a refundable damage deposit, and all applicable user fees and insurance as described in 
Insurance Requirements.  Renters are required to provide the name and phone number of the principal 
contact person and a secondary contact.  This person must be present onsite during the approved rental 
period and will be the emergency contact, and is responsible for ensuring compliance with the policies 
outlined.  A copy of the permit must be onsite and available upon request by District staff or 
representatives during approved rental period. 
 
Single day reservation may be made up to one (1) year in advance.  Long-term league reservations may 
be made up to four (4) months in advance, unless previously approved by the Town of Discovery Bay 
CSD Board of Directors.  
 
No reservation or agreement will be approved or signed until the requesting user has paid the applicable 
deposits and fees. 
 

 Insurance Requirements: All sports leagues, organizations, groups over 50, or inflatable play equipment 
operators are required to provide the District with a valid Certificate of Liability Insurance (in the 
amount of $1,000,000.00), with the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District listed as an 
additionally insured.  Insurance Certificates must be submitted to the District at least five (5) days prior 
to the scheduled reservation. 

 
 Cancellations:  Park Rental cancellations occurring five (5) business days or more prior to the event will 

be refunded all fees and deposits.  Cancellations occurring four (4) business days or less prior to the 
event will forfeit all applicable fees but be refunded all of the deposit. 

 
 Cancellation for Indoor Facility Rentals at the Community Center occurring sixty (60) days or more prior 

to the event will be refunded all fees and deposits.  Cancellations less than sixty (60) days, but more 
than thirty (30) days prior to the event date will forfeit 25% of the total fees.  Cancellations less than 
thirty (30) days prior to the event date, but more than fifteen (15) days prior to the event date will 
forfeit 50% of the total fees.  Cancellations occurring less than fifteen (15) days prior to the event date 
will forfeit all applicable fees.  In all cases of cancellation, the deposit shall be returned. 

 
 Cancellation fees above do not reflect any cancellation processing fees.  Processing fees are in addition 

to the cancellation fees described here. 
 

Agenda item C-3



 
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District   

Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 10/19/2016 

Adopted – 04-20-2011 
 

 

 Clean Up:  Renters are required to clean up and return the park or area to the original condition.  Trash 
must be placed in the receptacles provided.  Trash that does not fit in the trash receptacle must be 
disposed of properly by the renter.  

 
 Reasonable party decorations are permitted.  However, users may not put staples or nails into any tree, 

sign, wall or table for any purpose. All decorations must be taken down and removed from the facility. 
 
 Deposit Forfeiture:  Renter agrees to take full responsibility for the behavior of their guests during the 

rental period.  Children must be supervised at all times by adults.  Any charges for damage to the park or 
facility or its furnishings will be deducted from the deposit.  Rentals that exceed the reserved time 
period will be charged the hourly rate to be deducted from the deposit.  Failure to leave the rented area 
in satisfactory condition will result in deposit forfeiture.  Upon a satisfactory inspection of the premises 
by District staff, the deposit check will be destroyed or returned to the applicant. 

 
 Prohibited Activities:  No person shall consume, possess, sell, serve or cause to be served, any alcoholic 

beverage of any kind within any park area, unless expressly authorized in advance of the event by the 
Board of Directors. The General Manager, or designee, is authorized to approve service of alcoholic 
beverages for private events taking place at the Discovery Bay Community Center once a complete and 
approved application is received and all insurance requirements and other conditions of approval are 
approved. See Special Conditions regarding the serving and or/sale of Alcoholic beverages, below. Fires 
and barbecues (BBQ) shall be permitted only in grills already provided in the park.  There shall be no 
overnight events or camping at any Discovery Bay park facility unless expressly authorized in advance of 
the event by the Board of Directors. 

 
 Gambling activities are expressly prohibited at all Town of Discovery Bay Parks and Recreation facilities.  

Individuals or groups of individuals in violation of this prohibited activity shall immediately cease the 
prohibited activity.  Failure to cease shall result in the immediate notification of local law enforcement 
authorities.   

 
 Renter agrees that they will comply with all state and local laws including but not limited to activities 

that require a state or local permit.  At the discretion of the General Manager, or designee, security may 
be required on a case by case basis. 

 
 Special Conditions regarding the serving and or/sale of Alcoholic beverages: 
 
 If alcohol is to be served or sold, it must be indicated on the rental application.  The General Manager or 

Board of Directors, as identified above, must approve any application which includes consumption or 
sale of alcohol.  Once approved, it is the responsibility and liability of the Renter and/or organization 
renting the facility. At the discretion of the General Manager, or designee, security may be required on a 
case by case basis. 

 
 To sell alcoholic beverages at your event, a valid alcohol permit from the California Department of 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (A.B.C.) must be obtained.  The permit must be on file with the District 
offices at least ten (10) days prior to your event.   

 
 Food and Alcohol may be consumed without an Alcohol permit from the A.B.C. when there is no 

monetary exchange for the food, beverages or admission charged for the event.   

Agenda item C-3



 
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District   

Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 10/19/2016 

Adopted – 04-20-2011 
 

 

 
 Violation of any of these requirements will result in immediate termination of Renter’s event and will 

result in forfeiture of the damage deposit. 
 
 The District may require additional deposits, insurance and/or security for events where alcohol is 

served.  These additional requirements will be determined by the circumstances of each rental request. 
 
 Food Preparation:  Food and non-alcoholic beverages may be served, but not prepared on site for any 

indoor facility rentals at the Community Center. 
 Exhibitions, Events, Festivals, Meeting and Assemblies:  Any person, group, society, club or 

organization wishing to set up or maintain any exhibition, place of amusement, concert, picture show, 
bandstand, performance, entertainment or other form of amusement or function where the expected 
attendance is fifty (50) people or more occupying the park at any one time, must first obtain written 
authorization from the District’s General Manager.  These types of requests must be submitted no less 
than sixty (60) days prior to the event. 

 
IV. MISCELLANEOUS 
Any policy listed herein may be waived or modified on a case-by-case basis and at the discretion of the 
Board of Directors.   
 
Requirements listed herein, except those identified as “prohibited”, may be waived or modified on a 
case-by-case basis by the General Manager, or designee, upon the finding of public interest; any such 
modification (including modification to fees) shall be summarized on the next available board agenda. 
 
 
 
Policy Established: 
 
April 20, 2011 
 
Policy Amended: 
 
July 16, 2013 
January 8, 2014 
December 16, 2015 
October 19, 2016 

Agenda item C-3



  

 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  
Alcohol Policy, September 3, 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
POLICY STATEMENT 

 

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District supports the ability to allow renters of District 
facilities the ability to host private parties and to serve or consume alcohol during facility rentals when it 
is determined by staff to be feasible and age appropriate. This policy provides the framework to guide 
renters in the process to be able to serve or consume alcohol for private parties and events. The Policy 
outlines the procedural structure that adjusts to the different types of facility rentals based on the number 
of planned attendees. Management within the District must determine the appropriateness for alcohol 
consumption during all potential rentals to maintain consistency with this policy. 
 
APPLICATION, AGREEMENT, & SPECIAL ALCOHOL PERMIT 
 

Each potential renter that would like to serve or consume alcohol during a facility rental must fill out the 
appropriate application and agreement as well as the special alcohol permit. The rental applicant must 
also meet all guidelines listed in the agreement. The District reserves the right to accept or reject an 
individual or group’s offer to serve or consume alcohol. It is strictly prohibited to sell or barter alcohol, 
and will be cause for immediate revocation of the permit and the cancellation of the event. 
 
SPECIAL ALCOHOL PERMIT QUALIFICATIONS 
 

 Age - Any person seeking to rent a District facility who intends on serving or consuming alcohol 
must be 21 years of age with a valid ID, and anyone who wishes to serve or consume alcohol 
during the rental must be 21 years of age and have a valid ID. Special Alcohol permits will not be 
issued if the guest of honor is a minor or if the majority of the attendees are minors. 

 

 Applications & Fees - All applicants must fill out a rental application for the facility they would like 
to rent. All rental fees and deposits must be paid in full prior to the event. The Special Alcohol 
permit must be filled out completely and submitted at least (2) weeks prior to the rental. The 
alcohol permit fee for the Special Alcohol Permit is based on the number of attendees who will 
be present during the rental period. 
 
1-50  Attendees - $50  
51-100 Attendees - $75  
100+ Attendees - $100    

 

 Insurance - Applicants are required to provide a certificate of insurance that names the Town of 
Discover Bay as an additional insured providing general liability insurance in and amount of not 
less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $1,000,000 general aggregate.  The Town of 
Discovery Bay may be able to obtain a certificate of insurance for the event at the expense of 
the applicant. 

 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
 

  

Program Area: 
Parks & Recreation 

  
Date Established: 

September 3, 2014 
  

Policy Name: 
Alcohol Policy 

  
  
Date Amended: 

N/A 
  

Policy Number: 
022 

  
Resolution: 

2014-21 
  

Agenda Item C-3



  

 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  
Alcohol Policy, September 3, 2014 

 
 

 
  
DETERMINING AND APPROVAL – SPECIAL ALCOHOL PERMIT 
 

Once the District has received a Special Alcohol permit application, the Department Manager will review 
the permit and make sure that all qualifications have been met. Completed forms will be reviewed for 
approval by the General Manager, or designee, prior to issuance of a Special Alcohol Permit. 
 
FACILITIES 
 

The following are the District facilities at which serving or consumption of alcohol may be approved 
during facility rentals with the required permits and fees 
 
 Indoor Facilities  
  Discovery Bay Community Center’s Cabrillo Room  
  Discovery Bay Community Center’s Marina Room  
  Discovery Bay Community Center’s Discovery Room 
 
 Outdoor Facilities  
  Discovery Bay Community Center’s Event Lawn  
  Discovery Bay Community Center’s BBQ Area  
    
 
RULES AND REGULATIONS  
 

1. A District facility attendant will be present for rentals with 50+ attendees. An added fee of 
$15.00/hour or partial will be assessed prior to the event based upon the anticipated timeframes.  
Any additional expenses shall be paid in full at the conclusion of the event or may be deducted 
from the security deposit .  

2. All guests who will be served alcohol must be at least 21 years old and be able to provide a valid 
ID. Guests who cannot provide a valid ID will be acknowledged as a minor. There are No 
Exceptions. 

3. Alcohol service includes beer, wine, & champagne. Liquor and other distilled spirits are 
prohibited (Glass beer bottles are prohibited). 

4. Alcohol may only be brought in by the person or organization responsible for the rental or a 
licensed caterer. Guests may not bring their own beverages to the event. Non-Compliance may 
result in the cancellation of the event at the discretion of Town staff. 

5.  Alcohol is not to be consumed outside of the rental area(s), and shall not be consumed in entry 
ways or parking lots. 

6. All rentals that request alcohol must have a certificate of insurance that names Town of 
Discovery Bay as an additional insured, as described above. 

7. Alcohol will not be permitted when the guest of honor is a minor, or when a majority of the 
attendees are minors.  

8. Alcohol service must stop (30) minutes before the designated end time of the rental. 
9. There may be additional requirements for rentals with more than (50) attendees including but not 

limited to necessity of security, at the discretion of Town staff. 
10. Alcohol service or consumption that has not been approved or fails to comply with all 

requirements of the agreement will result in termination of rental, and forfeiture of rental deposit.  
11. The event host is responsible to fulfill all requirements of the agreement. The District is not 

responsible for any loss of the rental expense due to the requirements not being met.  
 

 

Agenda Item C-3



 

 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 15, 2017 

 
Prepared By: Mike Davies, General Manager 
Submitted By: Mike Davies, General Manager 

 
Agenda Title 
 

Town of Discovery Bay Record Retention Schedules 
 
Recommended Action 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2017-05 approving Town of Discovery Bay Records Retention and Document Destruction 
Schedules.  
 
Executive Summary 
 

Our Records Retention Schedules have been updated to reflect changes in law and operations.  The adoption of these 
updated retention schedules will result in efficiency gains and cost savings  
 

Background: 
 

The Town’s records management consultant, Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc., (GGS), has reviewed and updated 
the records retention schedules to bring them current with changes in law and operational “Best Practices.” 
 

Additions are in blue underlined font; deletions are in red strike out. 
 

The update of the records retention schedules are driven by many factors, including: 
 

 Many departments are filing and storing copies of the same records 

 Town of Discovery Bay produces and manages many permanent records   

 Escalating records storage expenses 

 Technology advancements  

 Changes in law, pertaining to special district records 
 

Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. has assisted over 150 California municipal governments with their records 
management, records retention and/or document imaging programs, including many special districts, agencies or units.  
 

The appropriate Department Manager, the General Manager, and District Counsel have reviewed and approved all 
Retention Schedules.   
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
The Town of Discovery Bay will realize significant savings both in labor and storage expenses; including the avoidance 
of future storage and/or construction costs. 
 

Amount Requested  $  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item: 
 

November 19, 2014 - Adoption of Resolution 2014-26 and Record Retention and Document Destruction Schedules. 
   
Attachments 
 

Resolution 2017-05; How to Use Retention Schedules; Record Retention Schedule Legend; Updated Record Retention 
Schedules Per Department  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: C-4 

Cinderella
Stamp



 

 

1 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 
A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 

ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE AND AUTHORIZING DESTRUCTION OF 
CERTAIN DISTRICT RECORDS,  

AND RESCINDING PREVIOUS RESOLUTION 2014-26  
 
 
 WHEREAS, the maintenance of numerous records is expensive, slows document retrieval, 
and is not necessary after a certain period of time for the effective and efficient operation of the 
government of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 60200 of the Government Code of the State of California provides that  
the legislative body of a special district may authorize at any time the destruction or disposition of any 
duplicate record, paper, or document, the original or a permanent photographic record of which is in 
the files of any officer or department of the district; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 60201 of the Government Code of the State of California is amended 
effective January 1, 2005 to provide that district records which have served their purpose, which are 
not expressly required by law to be filed and persevered, and which will not adversely affect any 
interest of the district or public may be destroyed; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has a procedure to maintain a list of the types of records destroyed or 

disposed of that reasonably identifies the information contained in the records in each category; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District previously adopted Resolution 2014-26 adopting records retention 

schedules; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Resolution Number 2014-26 is hereby rescinded. 
 
Section 2.  The Board of Directors finds that the destruction or disposition of the records series 

that have exceeded the retention periods as set forth in the Records Retention Schedule Exhibit A will 
not adversely affect any interest of the District or the public. 

 
Section 3.  The records of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District, as set 

forth in the Records Retention Schedule Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference, are hereby authorized to be destroyed as provided by Section 60201 et seq. of the 
Government Code of the State of California and in accordance with the provision of said schedule in 
accordance with District policies and procedures. 

    
Section 4.  The term “records” as used herein shall include documents, instructions, books, 

microforms, electronic files, magnetic tape, optical media, or papers; as defined by the California 
Public Records Act. 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 2017-05 

 

 

 

Agenda Item C-4



 

 

2 

Section 5.  The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of this Resolution.  
 
Section 6.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15
th
 DAY OF MARCH 2017 

 
 
      _________________________ 
      Robert Leete 
      Board President 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town 
of Discovery Bay Community Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting, held on March 15, 
2017, by the following vote of the Board: 
  
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
  ABSTAIN: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Michael Davies 
Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
. 

Agenda Item C-4



HOW TO USE RETENTION SCHEDULES 
©1995-2017 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved 

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission 

 

 
A legend explaining the information presented in the retention schedule has been printed on the back of 
each page for your easy reference; an index to locate records is also provided.  
 
The specified retention period applies regardless of the media of the record:  If a record is stored on paper 
and a computer file on a hard drive, both records should be destroyed (or erased) after the specified 
period of time has elapsed.   
 
Copies or duplicates of records should never be retained longer than the prescribed period for the original 
record. 
 

STRUCTURE:  DISTRICTWIDE,  DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS 

 
The District-wide retention schedule includes those records all departments have in common (letters, 
memorandums, purchase orders, etc.).  These records are NOT repeated in the Department retention 
schedule, unless that department is the Office of Record, and therefore responsible for maintaining the 
original record for the prescribed length of time. 
 
Each department has a separate retention schedule that describes the records that are unique to its 
department, or for which it is the Office of Record.   Where appropriate, the department retention 
schedules are organized by Division within that Department.  If a record is not listed in your department 
retention schedule, refer to the District-wide retention schedule.  An index will be provided for your 
reference. 
 

BENEFITS 
 
This retention schedule will provide the District with the following benefits: 
 

• Reduce administrative expenses, expedite procedures 
• Free filing cabinet and office space 

 • Reduce the cost of records storage 
 • Eliminate duplication of effort within the District 
 • Find records faster 
 • Easier purging of file folders 
 • Determine what media should be used to store records 
 
For questions, please contact the District Clerk. 
 

Authorization to Destroy Records: 
 
All original records that have exceeded their retention period must be authorized for destruction according 
to District Policies & Procedures prior to destroying them. 
 
Copies, drafts, notes and non-records do NOT require authorization, and can be destroyed “When No 
Longer Required.” 

 If there is a minimum retention (“ Minimum 2 years"), it must be authorized for destruction 
before it is destroyed, as it is an original record. 

 If there is NOT a minimum retention ("When No Longer Required"), it does NOT need to be 
authorized for destruction prior to destruction, as it is a preliminary draft / transitory record or a 
copy. 

 On every page of the schedules (near the top, just under the column headings) are important 

instructions, including instructions regarding holds on destroying records.  “Litigation, 

complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend 

normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).” 

Agenda Item C-4



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE LEGEND 
©1995 - 2017 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved 

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission 

 

 

OFR (Office of Record):  The department that keeps the original or “record copy.”  Usually it is the department that originates the record, unless the item is for 
a District Board meeting (then it is the District Clerk.) 
 

Records Description:  The record series (a group of like records). 
 

Transitory Records:  Records that are not retained in the ordinary course of business, including without limitation: Preliminary drafts, notes, or interagency or 
intra-agency memoranda and records having only transitory value.  Examples:  Telephone messages, meeting room reservation schedules, logs, source 
records entered into a computer system that qualify as a “trusted system”, etc. 
 

Non-Record:  Documents, studies, books and pamphlets produced by outside agencies, preliminary drafts not retained by the District in the ordinary course of 
business. 
 

Retention/Disposition:  Active:  How long the file remains in the immediate office area (guideline) 

    Inactive:  How long the file is in off-site storage, stored on Optical Disk or Microforms (guideline) 

    Total Retention:  The total number of years the record will be retained active and inactive 
 

For file folders containing documents with different retention timeframes, use the document with the longest retention time. 

  P = Permanent 

  Indefinite = No fixed or specified retention period; used for databases, because the data fields are interrelated.  
  

 Vital?  = Those records that are needed for basic operations in the event of a disaster. 
 

 Media Options (guideline) – the form of the record:   Mag = Computer Magnetic Media (hard drives, tapes, USB Drives, thumb drives, etc.) 
        Mfr = Microforms (aperture cards, microfilm, microfiche, or jackets)  
        Ppr = Paper   
        OD = Optical Disk, CD-r, DVD-r, WORM, or other media which does not allow changes 
 

 Scan / Import (guideline):   “S” indicates the record should be scanned into the document imaging system; 
     “I” indicates the record should be electronically imported into the document imaging system; 
     “M” indicates the record should be microfilmed 
 

Destroy Paper after Imaged & QCd (guideline, if record is imaged):  QCd=Quality Checked.  “Yes” indicates the paper version may be destroyed if the 
document has been imaged (microfilmed, scanned or imported onto Optical Disk – CD-R, WORM or DVD-R), and both the images and indexing have 
been QCd. 

 

Legend for legal citations (§:  Section) B&P:  Business & Professions Code (CA)  CBC:  California Building Code  
CC:  Civil Code (CA)   CCP:  Code of Civil Procedure (CA)   CCR:  California Code of Regulations (CA)   
CFC:  California Fire Code   CFR:  Code of Federal Regulations (US)  EC:  Elections Code (CA)     
EVC:  Evidence Code (CA)  FA:  Food & Agriculture Code (CA)   FC:  Family Code (CA)     
FTB:  Franchise Tax Board (CA)  GC:  Government Code (CA)   H&S:  Health & Safety Code (CA)    
HUD:  Housing & Urban Develop. (US) LC:  Labor Code (CA)     Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen.:  Attorney General Opinions (CA)   
PC:  Penal Code (CA)   R&T:  Revenue & Taxation Code (CA)  UFC:  Uniform Fire Code    
USC:  United States Code (US)  VC:  Vehicle Code (CA)    W&I:  Welfare & Institutions Code (CA) 
WC: Water Code 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Human 

Resources
DW-001

Accident, Incident, Injury 

reports:  EMPLOYEES, with 

associated MSDS, if a 

chemical was involved

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, 

Ppr

Copies retained for reference; 

GC §60200

Risk Manag. DW-002
Accident, Incident, Injury 

reports:  PUBLIC

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, 

Ppr

Copies retained for reference; 

GC §60200

Finance DW-003

Accounts Payable, Invoices, 

Petty Cash, Warrant Requests, 

etc. 

ALL backup is forwarded to 

Finance

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Before 

Payment

Mag, 

Ppr

All originals go to Finance 

(these are copies); GC §60200

Lead Dept. DW-004

Affidavits of Publications / 

Public Hearing Notices / Legal 

Advertising / Affidavits of 

Posting

2 years 2 years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

Brown Act challenges must be 

filed within 30 or 90 days of 

action; Statute of Limitations 

on Municipal Government 

actions is 3 - 6 months; CCP 

§§337 et seq, 349.4; GC 

§§60201, 54960.1(c)(1)  

Board Clerk DW-005
Agenda Packets / Staff 

Reports:  Board of Directors 

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

QC &OD
GC §60200

Board Clerk DW-006

Agreements & Contracts ALL 

BOARD APPROVED 

(Specifications / Scope of 

Work, Notices of Completion, 

etc.)

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S

Yes:  Upon 

Completio

n

All agreements that are 

approved by the Board of 

Directors are sent to the Board 

Clerk; GC §60200

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-007

Agreements & Contracts:  

ADMINISTRATIVE FILES / 

ORIGINAL CONTRACTS Not 

Approved by the Board of 

Directors

(Correspondence, Project 

Administration, Project 

Schedules, Certified Payrolls, 

Insurance Certificates, 

Invoices, Logs, RFP, etc.)  

Completion 10 years 
Completion + 

10 years

Yes:  Before 

Completion

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I

Yes:  Upon 

Completio

n

Covers E&O Statute of 

Limitations (insurance 

certificates are filed with 

agreement); Published Audit 

Standards=4-7 years; Statute 

of Limitations: Contracts & 

Spec's=4 years, Wrongful 

Death=comp. + 5 years, 

Developers=comp. + 10 years; 

Statewide guidelines propose 

termination + 5 years; CCP 

§337 et. seq., GC §60201

Lead Dept. DW-008

Agreements & Contracts:  

ADMINISTRATIVE FILES 

(with Grant Funding) / 

ORIGINAL CONTRACTS Not 

Approved by the Board of 

Directors

(Correspondence, Project 

Administration, Project 

Schedules, Certified Payrolls, 

Insurance Certificates, 

Invoices, Logs, RFP, etc.)  

Completion 

10 years or 

After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

required, 

whichever is 

longer

Completion 

+ 10 years or 

After Funding 

Agency Audit, 

if required, 

whichever is 

longer

Yes:  Before 

Completion

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I

Yes:  Upon 

Completio

n

Some grant funding agencies 

require audits; Statute of 

Limitations for Errors & 

Omissions is 10 years; 

Published Audit Standards=4-7 

years; Statute of Limitations: 

Contracts & Spec's=4 years, 

Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 

years, Developers=comp. + 10 

years; Statewide guidelines 

propose termination + 5 years; 

CCP §337 et. seq., 21 CFR 

1403.36 & 1403.42(b); 24 CFR 

85.42, 91.105(h), 92.505, & 

570.502(b), 28 CFR 66.42; 29 

CFR 97.42; 40 CFR 31.42; 44 

CFR 13.42; 45 CFR 92.42; 

OMB Circular A-133GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-009

Agreements & Contracts: 

UNSUCCESSFUL BIDS, 

UNSUCCESSFUL 

PROPOSALS or RESPONSES 

to RFPs (Request for 

Proposals) and/or RFQs 

(Request for Qualifications) 

that don't result in a contract

2 years 2 years
Mag, 

Ppr

The RFP / RFQ and the 

successful proposal becomes 

part of the agreement or 

contract (Board Clerk is OFR); 

GC §60201

Finance DW-010

Audits / Audit Reports / CAFR - 

Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Reports

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

  
Mag, 

Ppr
Copies; GC §60200

DW-011
Bids:  See Agreements & 

Contracts

Staffing Dept. DW-012

Boards and Committees:  

AUDIO RECORDINGS of 

Meetings / Audio Tapes

2 years 2 years   
Tape 

(Mag)

District preference; State law 

only requires for 30 days; GC 

§54953.5(b)

Staffing Dept. DW-013

Boards, Commissions, & 

Committees:  Board of 

Directors Subcommittees

(Composed solely of less than 

a quorum of the Board of 

Directors)

2 years 2 years   
Mag, 

Ppr

All recommendations are 

presented to the Board of 

Directors; GC §60201 et seq.

DW-014

Boards, Commissions, & 

Committees:  External 

Organizations 

(e.g. County Board of 

Supervisors)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  
Mag, 

Ppr
Non-records

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Staffing Dept. DW-015

Boards, Commissions, & 

Committees:  Residents 

Advisory Bodies Formed by 

Board of Directors

AGENDAS, AGENDA 

PACKETS.

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
  

Mag, 

Ppr

Brown Act challenges must be 

filed within 30 or 90 days of 

action; GC §§60201, 

54960.1(c)(1)

Staffing Dept. DW-016

Boards, Commissions, & 

Committees:  Residents 

Advisory Bodies Formed by 

Board of Directors

MINUTES & BYLAWS

P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

10 years

Notes taken to facilitate the 

writing of the minutes can be 

destroyed after minutes have 

been adopted; GC §60201 et 

seq.

DW-017
Brochures: See Reference 

Manuals

Board Clerk & 

Finance
DW-018 Budgets - Finals 

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Current 

Fiscal Year

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

5 years

Final must be filed with County 

Auditor; GC §60200, 40802, 

53901

Lead Dept. DW-019 Attorney Opinions
Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Board Clerk 

AND  Risk 

Manage.

DW-020 Claims

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required 

(Upon 

Settlement)

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required 

(Upon 

Settlement)

Yes:  Before 

Settlement

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

Settlement
 GC §§60200, 60201.6

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-021

Committees Internal - 

Attended by employees:  All 

Records 

(e.g. Records Management 

Committee, In-House Task 

Forces, etc.)

2 years 2 years   
Mag, 

Ppr
GC §60201

Lead 

(Responding) 

Dept.

DW-022

Complaints / Concerns from 

Citizens Computer Tracking 

Software or Correspondence

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
  

Mag, 

Ppr

District preference; Statute of 

Limitations for personal 

property, fraud, etc. is 3 years; 

Claims must be filed in 6 

months; CCP §§338 et seq., 

340 et seq., 342, GC §§945.6, 

GC §60201

DW-023 Contracts:  See Agreements

DW-024
Copies or duplicates of any 

record

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag Ppr GC §60200

Dept. that 

Authors 

Document 

or 

Receives the 

District's 

Original 

Document

DW-025

Correspondence - ROUTINE 

(e.g. Letters, Memos, 

Administrative, Chronological, 

General Files, Memorandums, 

Reading File, Working Files, etc.) 

2 years 2 years   
Mag, 

Ppr
GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-6

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Dept. that 

Authors 

Document 

or 

Receives the 

District's 

Original 

Document

DW-026

Correspondence - 

TRANSITORY / 

PRELIMINARY DRAFTS, 

Interagency and Intraagency 

Memoranda not retained in the 

ordinary course of business 

(e.g. calendars, checklists, e-mail 

or social media posting NOT made 

or retained for the purpose of 

preserving the informational 

content for future reference, 

invitations, instant messaging, logs, 

mailing lists, meeting room 

registrations, supply inventories, 

telephone messages, text 

messages, transmittal letters, thank 

yous, requests from other cities, 

undeliverable envelopes, visitors 

logs, voice mails, webpages, etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  
Mag, 

Ppr

Electronic and paper records 

are filed and  retained based 

upon their content.  E-mails, 

electronic records, or social 

media postings that ARE  

made or retained for the 

purpose of preserving the 

informational content for 

future reference are saved 

outside the e-mail system by 

printing them out and placing 

them in a file folder, or saving 

them electronically; If not 

mentioned here, consult the 

District Attorney to determine if 

a record is considered 

transitory / preliminary drafts.  

GC §60201, GC §6252; 64 

Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen.  317 

(1981))

Board Clerk DW-027
Deeds, Easements, Final 

Orders of Condemnations (All)

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

  
Mag, 

Ppr

Send all originals to the Board 

Clerk; GC §60200

Lead Dept. DW-028
Drafts & Notes:  Drafts that are 

revised (retain final version)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  
Mag, 

Ppr

As long as the drafts and notes 

are not retained in the "Regular 

Course of Business".  Consult 

the District Attorney to 

determine if a record is 

considered a draft.  GC 

§§60201, 6252, 6254(a)

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-7

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-029
Facility Use Applications / 

Facility Use Permits
2 years 2 years

Mag, 

Ppr
GC §60201

Lead Dept. DW-030

GIS Database / Data / Layers 

(both District-wide and 

Specialized)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes Mag

The Lead Department should 

print out historical documents 

(or save source data) prior to 

replacing the data, if they 

require the data or output for 

historical purposes; 

Department Preference 

(Preliminary documents);  GC 

§60201 et seq.

Lead Dept. DW-031
Grants (UNSUCCESSFUL 

Applications, Correspondence)
2 years 2 years   

Mag, 

Ppr
GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-8

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-032

Grants / CDBG / Reimbursable 

Claims (SUCCESSFUL 

Reports, other records required 

to pass the funding agency's 

audit, if required)

Applications (successful), grant 

agreement, program rules, 

regulations & procedures, reports 

to grant funding agencies, 

correspondence, audit records, 

completion records

2 years

After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

Required - 

Minimum 5 

years

After Funding 

Agency Audit, 

if required - 

Minimum 5 

years

  
Mag, 

Ppr

Meets auditing standards; 

Grants covered by a 

Consolidated Action Plan are 

required for 5 years; Uniform 

Admin. Requirements for 

Grants to Local Governments 

is 3 years from expenditure 

report or final payment of 

grantee or subgrantee; 

statewide guidelines propose 4 

years; 2 CFR 200.333; 7 CFR 

3016.42; 21 CFR 1403.36 & 

1403.42(b); 24 CFR 85.42, 

91.105(h), 92.505, 570.490, & 

570.502(a&b), 28 CFR 66.42; 

29 CFR 97.42; 40 CFR 31.42; 

44 CFR 13.42; 45 CFR 92.42; 

OMB Circular A-110 & A-

133GC §60201

Human 

Resources
DW-033

Grievances and Informal 

Complaints (Employees) 

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes: Before 

Disposition

Mag, 

Ppr

Send all grievances to Human 

Resources; All State and 

Federal laws require retention 

until final disposition of formal 

complaint; State requires 2 

years after action is taken; GC 

§§12946, 60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-9

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Risk Manag. DW-034
Lawsuits, Litigation, Pending 

Litigation

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required 

(Upon 

Settlement)

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required 

(Upon 

Settlement)

Yes:  Before 

Settlement

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

Settlement

Risk Management 

administrates claim; GC 

§§60200, 60201.6

Lead Dept. DW-035
Leave Requests / Vacation 

Requests

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  
Mag, 

Ppr

District Preference; Preliminary 

draft / transitory record; GC 

§60201, GC §6252

Board Clerk DW-036 Minutes - Board of Directors 

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes (all)

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S No
Originals maintained by Board 

Clerk Permanently; GC §60200

Board Clerk DW-037
Municipal Code (these are 

copies)

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Current 

Original

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

I No

Return any whole unused 

codes to the Board Clerk; 

Originals maintained by Board 

Clerk Permanently; GC §60201

Lead Dept. DW-038 Newspaper Clippings

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Ppr

Non-records - may be obtained 

from the newspaper company; 

GC §60201

Staffing Dept. DW-039

Notices:  Public Hearing 

Notices and Proofs of 

Publications

Project 

Approval + 2 

years

Project 

Approval + 2 

years

  
Mag, 

Ppr

Statute of Limitations on 

Municipal Government actions 

is 3 - 6 months; CCP§337 et 

seq; GC §60201

Board Clerk DW-040
Ordinances  - Board of 

Directors 

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes (all)

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S No
Originals maintained by Board 

Clerk Permanently; GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-10

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Human 

Resources
DW-041 Personnel Files  

Send to 

Human 

Resources 

Upon 

Separation or 

Transfer

Send to 

Human 

Resources 

Upon 

Separation or 

Transfer

Before 

Separation

Mag, 

Ppr

Ensure records kept in 

Department files comply with 

District policy (all originals are 

sent to Human Resources); GC 

§60200

Lead Dept. DW-042
Personnel Files (Supervisor's 

Notes)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Before 

Annual 

Performance 

Evaluation

Mag, 

Ppr

Preliminary Drafts; Notes 

maintained in a separate folder 

to be incorporated into 

performance evaluation, or to 

document progressive 

discipline; GC §60201 et seq.

Lead Dept. DW-043 Personnel Work Schedules 2 years 2 years   
Mag, 

Ppr
GC §60201

Lead Dept. DW-044
Public Relations / Press 

Releases
2 years 2 years

Mag, 

Ppr
GC §60201

Lead Dept. 

(Who Ordered 

the Appraisal)

DW-045

Real Estate Appraisal Reports:  

Property NOT purchased, 

Loans not funded, etc.

2 years 2 years
Mag, 

Ppr

Not accessible to the public; 

Statewide Guidelines show 2 

years; GC §§60201, 6254(h)

Lead Dept. 

(Who Ordered 

the Appraisal)

DW-046

Real Estate Appraisal Reports:  

Purchased Property, Funded 

Loans

2 years
 Minimum 3 

years

Minimum 5 

years

Yes:  Before 

Purchase

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

Inactive

Not accessible to the public 

until purchase has been 

completed; meets grant 

auditing requirements; 24 CFR 

85.42 & 91.105(h), & 

570.502(b); 29 CFR 97.42, GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-11

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

DW-047

Reference Materials:  Policies, 

Procedures, Brochures, 

Manuals, Brochures, Flyers, 

Manuals, Newsletters,  etc:  

Produced by OUTSIDE 

ORGANIZATIONS (League of 

California Cities, Chamber of 

Commerce, etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  
Mag, 

Ppr
Non-Records

Lead Dept. DW-048

Reference Materials:  Policies, 

Procedures, Brochures, Flyers, 

Manuals, Newsletters, etc:  

Produced by  YOUR 

Department

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
  

Mag, 

Ppr

Statewide guidelines propose 

superseded + 2 or 5 years; GC 

§60201

Lead Dept. DW-049

Reference Materials: Policies, 

Procedures, Brochures, Flyers, 

Manuals, Newsletters, etc:  

Produced by OTHER 

Departments

When 

Superseded

When 

Superseded
  

Mag, 

Ppr
Copies; GC §60200

DW-050
Reference or Working Files:  

See Correspondence

Lead Dept. DW-051

Reports and Studies 

(Historically significant - e.g., 

Zoning Studies)

10 years P P   

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S/I
Yes:  After 

10 years

Administratively and 

Historically significant, 

therefore retained 

permanently; GC §60201

Lead Dept. DW-052

Reports and Studies (other 

than Historically significant 

reports - e.g. Annual Reports)

10 years 10 years   
Mag, 

Ppr

Information is outdated after 10 

years; statewide guidelines 

propose 2 years; If historically 

significant, retain permanently; 

GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-12

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Board Clerk DW-053
Resolutions - Board of 

Directors 

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes (all)

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

S No
Originals maintained by Board 

Clerk Permanently; GC §60200

Lead Dept. DW-054
Special Projects / Subject Files 

/ Issue Files 

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years

Mag, 

Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Lead Dept. DW-055

Subject / Reference Files:  

Subjects other than Specifically 

Mentioned in Retention 

Schedules

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years

Mag, 

Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Lead Dept. DW-056

Surveys / Questionnaires (that 

the District issues).  

If a summary of the data is 

compiled, the survey forms are 

considered a draft or transitory 

record, and can be destroyed 

as drafts (When No Longer 

Required)

2 years 2 years   
Mag, 

Ppr
GC §60201

Finance / 

Payroll
DW-057

Time Sheets / Time Cards / 

Overtime Sheets / Overtime 

Cards

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, 

Ppr
GC §60200

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: DISTRICT-WIDE STANDARDS Page DW-13

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. DW-058

Training - ALL COURSE 

RECORDS 

(Attendance Rosters, Outlines 

and Materials; includes Ethics 

& Safety training & Tailgate 

Training Meetings)

2 years 5 years 7 years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes: When 

Inactive

Department preference; Ethics 

Training is 5 years; Statewide 

guidelines propose 7 years; 

Calif. Labor Division is required 

to keep their OSHA records 7 

years; EEOC/FLSA/ADEA 

(Age) requires 3 years for 

promotion, demotion, transfer, 

selection, or discharge; State 

Law requires 2 -3 years for 

personnel actions;  8 CCR 

§3203 et seq., 29 CFR 

1602.31 1627.3(b)(ii), LC 

§6429(c); GC §§12946, 60201, 

53235.2(b) 

Lead Dept. DW-059

Volunteer / Unpaid Intern 

Applications & Agreements - 

Successful

Inactive / 

Separation + 

3 years

Inactive / 

Separation + 

3 years

Ppr

Department preference (Courts 

treat volunteers as 

employees); 

EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) 

requires 3 years for promotion, 

demotion, transfer, selection, 

or discharge; 29 CFR 1602.31 

& 1627.3(b)(1)(i)&(ii), GC 

Lead Dept. DW-060

Volunteer / Unpaid Intern 

Applications & Agreements - 

Unsuccessful or Pending 

Applicants

3 years 3 years Ppr

Department preference (Courts 

treat volunteers as 

employees); 

EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) 

requires 3 years for promotion, 

demotion, transfer, selection, 

or discharge; 29 CFR 1602.31 

& 1627.3(b)(1)(i)&(ii), GC 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

ADMINISTRATION

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-001

Adjusting Entries / Journal 

Entries
5 years 5 years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-002 Audit Work Papers (Finals) 5 years 5 years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-003

Audited Financial Statements / 

Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR) with Audit 

Management Letters / Audit 

Reports

2 years P P
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference for 

historical purposes; District 

Secretary retains original 

permanently; GC §60201 et seq.

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-004

Audits - Operational (Internal 

Audits)
2 years 5 years 7 years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-005

Bank Statements / Checking 

Account Reconciliation / Bank 

Reconciliation  (Transaction 

Statements, Wire Transfers, 

Check Listing Audit Trail, 

Deposits, Treasury Statements, 

Trustee & Investment 

Statements, etc.) 

7years 7 years   Mag, Ppr

District Preference (may include 

records pertaining to independent 

contractor's compensation, or 

expense reimbursement); Meets 

auditing standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-006

Bonds / Certificates of 

Participation / Transcripts / 

Disclosure Reports  / Lines of 

Credit / Promissory Notes

Fully 

Defeased or 

Matured + 

10 years

Fully 

Defeased or 

Matured + 

10 years

Yes:  Until 

Maturity

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I No

Statute of Limitations for bonds, 

mortgages, trust deeds, notes or 

debentures is 6 years; Bonds 

issued by local governments are 

10 years; There are specific 

requirements for disposal of 

unused bonds; CCP §§336a(1) et 

seq.; 337.5(a); 26 CFR 1.6001-

1(e):  GC §§43900 et seq., 60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-007

Budgets:  Adopted, Budget 

Hearing, etc.
10 years P P

Yes:  

Current 

Fiscal Year

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; District 

Secretary maintains originals; 

longer for administrative value; 

GC §60200

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-008

Budgets:  Development, Drafts, 

etc.

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; District 

Secretary maintains originals; 

longer for administrative value; 

GC §60200

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-009

Chart of Accounts (Print out if a 

software change is made in order 

to retain historical account 

numbers)

2 years 5 years 7 years Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60200

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-010

Contractor Deposits, Refundable 

Bonds, Receipts

Close + 5 

years

Close + 5 

years
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards;  GC §60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-011 Depreciation Schedules 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr S / I

Yes:  After 

Inactive

Department Preference 

(consistent with audit work 

papers); Published articles show 

7 years after disposal;  GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-012 Developer Trust Accounts

Close + 5 

years

Close + 5 

years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

3 months

Department Preference (meets 

auditing standards); GC §60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-013

Financial Reports:  Journals, 

Ledgers, Reconciliations, 

Registers, Reports, Transaction 

Histories, Balance Sheets, 

Budget Adjustments, Trial 

Balance, (MONTHLY OR 

PERIODIC)  Does NOT include 

year-end General Ledger.

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Draft / Preliminary documents 

used to produce final year-end 

general ledger (financial 

database is the original); GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-014 Financial System Database Indefinite Indefinite Mag

Data is interrelated; system 

qualifies as a "trusted system"; 

GC §§60201, 12168.7

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-015

Fixed Assets - Auction / Disposal 

/ Sales / Surplused
2 years 3 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Consistent with Accounts 

Receivable;  Statute of limitations 

is 3 years; statewide guidelines 

propose 2 - 4 years; published 

articles show 3 - 6 years; GC 

§60201, CCP §337

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-016 General Ledger:  Final year-end

Minimum 7 

years

Minimum 7 

years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; 

Published articles show 3 - 7 

years; GC §60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-017 Investments (Including Arbitrage) 5 years 5 years

Yes:  Until 

Maturity
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-018 Journal Entries 2 years 5 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Statute 

of Limitations is 4 years; 

Published articles show 6-7 

years; GC §60201, CCP §337

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-019 Monthly Work Papers

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr Preliminary Drafts; GC §60200

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-020 Petty Cash Reconciliation 7 years 7 years   Mag, Ppr

District Preference (may include 

records pertaining to independent 

contractor's compensation, or 

expense reimbursement); Meets 

auditing standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-021

State Controller's Report / Local 

Government Compensation 

Report

5 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr District Preference; GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-022

State Controller's Report / 

Special Districts Financial 

Transactions Report

5 years 5 years
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-023

Tax Exempt Status Forms 

(Federal or State) for Public 

Financing Corporation - 990-N, 

199-N

P P
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Admin.
FIN-024 Tax Returns (Sales Tax, etc.) 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; IRS: 4 

years after tax is due or paid  

(longer for auditing & contractor 

delinquency); Ca. FTB: 3 years; 

Published articles show 

permanent; ;  IRS Reg §31.6001-

1(e)(2), 26 CFR §1.6001-1,  R&T 

§19530, GC §60201

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FIN-025 1099's , 1096's, W-9's 2 years 5 years 7 years
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

IRS: 4 years after tax is due or 

paid  (longer for auditing & 

contractor delinquency); Ca. 

FTB: 3 years; Published articles 

show permanent; ;  IRS Reg 

§31.6001-1(e)(2),  R&T §19530, 

GC §60201(d)(12)

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FIN-026

Accounts Payable Source 

Records (includes Invoices, 

Receivers, Travel Expense 

Reimbursements, etc.)

2 years 5 years 7 years
Yes:  Until 

Paid

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

May contain independent 

contractor's compensation, 

expense reimbursement, or 

District credit card records; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; Sewage Sludge is 

required for 5 years; Published 

articles show 3 - 7 years; 40  

CFR 122.41(j)(2); WC 

§13263.2(b) et seq.; GC 

§60201(d)(12)

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FIN-027 Check Copies 2 years 5 years 7 years
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

May contain independent 

contractor's compensation; 

Statute of Limitations is 4 years; 

Meets municipal government 

auditing standards; GC 

§60201(d)(12), CCP § 337

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FIN-028

Check Registers (Including 

Payables and Receiving 

Transaction Journals)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Draft / Preliminary documents  

(financial database is the 

original); GC §60201

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FIN-029 Petty Cash 2 years 5 years 7 years
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

May contain independent 

contractor's compensation, 

expense reimbursement, or 

District credit card records; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201(d)(12) 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-6

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Accounts 

Payable

FIN-030 W-9's 7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

District Preference; Related to 

independent contractor's 

compensation; IRS: 4 yrs after 

tax is due or paid; Ca. FTB: 3 

years; Articles show 7 years; IRS 

Reg §31.6001-1(e)(2), R&T 

§19530; 29CFR 516.5 - 516.6, 

29USC 436, GC §60201(d)(12)

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-7

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

PAYROLL

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-052

1095-C (Employer-Provided 

Health Insurance Offer and 

Coverage) 

7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; IRS: 4 

years after tax is due or paid; 6 

CFR 31.6001-1(e)(2); 60201 et 

seq.

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-031

DE-6. DE-43, W-3, & DE-166, & 

941 Forms - Quarterly Payroll 

Tax Returns (Federal and State)  

IRS 5500 Forms (Employee 

Benefit Plans), PERS / FICA & 

Medicare Adjustments - Quarterly 

Payroll Tax Returns / OASDI, 

Federal Tax Deposits, 

Adjustments, etc. 

7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; IRS: 4 

years after tax is due or paid  

(longer for auditing & contractor 

delinquency); Ca. FTB: 3 years; 

Published articles show 

permanent; ;  IRS Reg §31.6001-

1(e)(2), 26 CFR §1.6001-1,  R&T 

§19530, GC §60201

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-032

Deferred Compensation Plan 

(457 Plan, 125 Plan) 

Plan 

Termination 
10 years

Plan 

Termination 

+ 10 years

Yes:  Before 

Expiration

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S No

Department preference to be 

consistent with District-wide 

standards; EEOC / ADEA (Age) 

requires 1 year after benefit plan 

termination; Federal law requires 

6 years after filing date; State 

Law requires 2 years after action; 

29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); 29 USC 

1027; GC §§12946, 60201

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-033

Deferred Compensation 

Statements / Transactions
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-053

Employee Reimbursement 

Disclosure Report
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr DGC §§53065.5, 60201 et seq.

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-034 Payroll Checks 7 years 7 years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD
GC §60201(d)(12), CCP § 337

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-035

Payroll Reports - Detail Year 

End (cumulative)
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-8

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-036

Payroll Reports - Monthly or 

Periodic
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-037

Retirement / Pension Records / 

Actuarial Valuation Reports / 

Actuarial Valuation Reports, 

Annual Employer Statements

7 years 7 years
Yes:  Until 

Paid
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Statute 

of Limitations for retirement 

benefits is 6 years from last 

action; GC §§12946, 60201; 29 

USC 1113

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-038 Timesheets 7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference to meet 

auditing standards; IRS requires 

4 years; Ca. requires 2 yr min.; 

FTB keeps 3 years; Published 

articles show 4 -10 years; IRS 

Reg §31.6001-1(e)(2), R&T 

§19530; LC § 1174(d); 29 CFR 

516.5 & 516.6(c); GC 

§60201(d)(12) 

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-039 W-2's 7 years 7 years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; IRS: 4 

yrs after tax is due or paid; Ca. 

FTB: 3 years; Articles show 7 

years; IRS Reg §31.6001-1(e)(2), 

R&T §19530; 29CFR 516.5 - 

516.6, 29USC 436, GC 

§60201(d)(12)

Finance / 

Payroll
FIN-054 W-4's 

No Longer in 

Effect + 4 

years

No Longer in 

Effect + 4 

years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

IRS Regulation 31-6001-1 four 

years after the due date of such 

tax for the return period to which 

the records relate, or the date 

such tax is paid, whichever is the 

later. GC §34090; 26 CFR 

31.6001-1GC §60201

UTILITY BILLING / CUSTOMER SERVICE

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-9

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-040 Bankruptcies - ALL 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-041

Billing / Utility Billing / Accounts 

Receivable Source Records / 

Revenue (ALL Records and 

Reports, including   Adjustments, 

Billings, Cash, Checks, Closed 

Accounts, Collections, Credit 

Memos, Deposits, Miscellaneous 

Billing, and Payments)

5 years 5 years
Yes:  Until 

Paid
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; Published articles 

show 3 - 7 years;  GC §60201

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-042
Billing Registers / Reports (Billing 

Ledger and Month End)
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; Published articles 

show 3 - 7 years;  GC §60201

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-043
Collection Agency Assignments / 

Write Offs
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (negative 

information remains on credit 

reports for 7 years); GC §60201 

et seq.

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-044 Collection Correspondence 7 years 7 years
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference to retain 

as long as it remains a doubtful 

account; Meets municipal 

government auditing standards; 

GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-10

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-045
Customer Correspondence and 

Comment Cards
2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr District preference; GC §60201

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-046

Customer Service Requests 

(CSRs) / Meter Set Forms /  

Service Orders  - Not Entered or 

Only Partially Entered Into 

CMMS Database

5 years 5 years
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

District preference for drinking 

water regulations; CCP §§338 et 

seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 

§§945.6, GC §60201

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-047 Deposit Slips  (Cash only) 5 years 5 years
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; Meets 

municipal government auditing 

standards; GC §60201

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-048

Payment Stubs (mailed) / Utility 

Receipts (when payment is made 

at the counter)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Transitory records not retained in 

the ordinary course of business; 

GC §60201

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-049

Residential Water Deposits / 

Customer Deposits / Customer 

Refunds

5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

District preference for drinking 

water regulations; CCP §§338 et 

seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 

§§945.6, GC §60201

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-050
Returned Payments (NSF, etc.)  

Checks / ACH
5 years 5 years

Yes:  Until 

Paid
Mag, Ppr

Meets municipal government 

auditing standards; Statewide 

guidelines propose audit + 4 

years;  GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  FINANCE Page FIN-11

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Finance / 

Utility 

Billing / 

Customer 

Service

FIN-051 Utility Billing Database Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag
Data Fields / Records are 

interrelated; GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

ADMINISTRATION / GENERAL MANAGER

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-001

Association Records (external 

associations - e.g., ACWA, 

CASA, etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr Non-records; GC §60201 et seq.

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-002

Correspondence with 

Regulatory Agencies / 

Environmental Agencies / 

Regulatory Agencies

(EPA, DHS, etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 10 

years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 10 

years

Yes:  While 

Active 

Issues

Mag, Ppr

District preference; some 

correspondence from Regulatory 

Agencies need to be retained for 

long periods of time; GC §60201

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-003
General Manager 

Correspondence

 Minimum 4 

years

Minimum 4 

years
Mag, Ppr

Administrative value to cover 

terms of office; GC §60201

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-004 Operating Permits
Expiration + 

2 years
P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Department preference; GC 

§60201

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-005

Plans & Plan Audits:  Urban 

Water Management Plans 

(UWMP), Wastewater / Sewer 

System Management Plans 

(SSMP) and Audits, etc.

10 years P P Yes
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference (copies) 

GC §60201.7

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-006
Projects & Issues (Issues and/or 

projects will vary over time)

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 2 

years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 2 

years

Yes:  While 

Active 

Issues

Mag, Ppr GC §60201

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-007 Vulnerability Assessment

When 

Superseded - 

Minimum 2 

years

When 

Superseded - 

Minimum 2 

years

 Ppr Confidential; GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-008

Water Forecasts / Urban Water 

Management Forecast / Future 

Developments, etc.

5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr
Department Preference (copies) 

GC §60200

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-009
Water Quality Reports / 

Consumer Confidence Reports
12 years P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes - After 

QC & OD

Department preference; State law 

requires 12 years, federal 10 

years; 40 CFR 141.33(a);  22 CCR 

§64692

GM / 

General 

Manager

GM-010
Weekly Letter to the Board / 

Board updates
4 years 4 years Mag, Ppr

Administrative value to cover 

terms of office; GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

BOARD CLERK   

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-011

Affidavits of Postings and 

Publications
2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Brown Act challenges must be 

filed within 30 or 90 days of action; 

Statute of Limitations on Municipal 

Government actions is 3 - 6 

months; Statute of Limitations for 

mailings for annexations, special 

districts, bonds is 60 days; CCP 

§§337 et seq, 349.4; GC §§60201, 

54960.1(c)(1)

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-012

Agenda Packets - District Board 

of Directors, Subcommittees of 

the Board (Includes Agenda Staff 

Reports, Annotated Agendas, 

etc.)

P P

Yes:  Before 

Meeting 

Date

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-013

Agreements - ALL Contracts 

(Joint Use, JPAs, MOUs, Water 

Banking, Property Purchasing, 

etc)

P P
Yes:  Before 

Completion

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

Completion

Department Preference; All 

infrastructure, JPAs, & Mutual Aid 

contracts are permanent for 

emergency preparedness; Statute 

of Limitations is 4 years; 10 years 

for Errors & Omissions; CCP 

§§337. 337.1(a), 337.15, 343; GC 

§60201 et seq.

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-014

Agreements for Service / Service 

Applications from Developers
P P

Yes:  Before 

Expiration

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; Statute of 

Limitations is 4 years; 10 years for 

Errors & Omissions; CCP §§337. 

337.1(a), 337.15, 343; GC §60201 

et seq.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-015 Annexations / Detachments P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S/I No GC § 60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-016

Audio Tapes & Recordings -  

District Board meetings 
4 years 4 years

Tape 

(Mag), 

OD

Department Preference; legally 

required for 30 days (or adoption 

of the minutes); GC §54953.5(b)

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-017

Bill of Sales / Bond Exoneration 

(Development, Pipelines, etc.)
P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S No

Department preference - 

infrastructure; GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk & 

Risk 

Manage.

GM-018
Claims & Litigation - (except 

Personnel issues)

Final 

Disposition + 

5 years

Final 

Disposition + 

5 years

Yes:  Until 

Final 

Disposition

Mag, Ppr

Claim must be filed within 1 year, 

lawsuit within 2 years; complaints 

against peace officers within 5 

years; Statute of Limitations for 

contracts is 4 years; wrongful 

death for construction is 

completion + 5 years; CCP §§ 337 

et seq.; GC §§ 911.2, 945.6, 

60201 et seq.

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-019

Conflict of Interest Code 

(Resolution)
P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S No GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-020

Deeds, Easements, 

Conveyances, Condemnations 

and Property Records (property 

acquisition files, including 

variances, title insurance and 

orders of condemnations, 

conservation easements, etc.)

P P Yes (all)
Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S No GC §60201(d)(8)

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-021

District Formation, Mergers, 

Boundary Changes, Organization 

or Reorganizations Approved by 

the Board

P P
Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Part of the Agenda Packet, which 

is maintained permanently; 

Required for formal changes to the 

district approved by the Board 

only; GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-022 District Seal, Logo P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S No

Brown Act challenges must be 

filed within 30 or 90 days of action; 

GC §§60201, 54960.1(c)(1)

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-077

DVD-r / CD-r / Blue Ray-R, 

WORM,, or other unalterable 

media that does not permit 

additions, deletions, or changes 

P P OD

For legal compliance for 

Trustworthy Electronic Records 

(when the electronic record serves 

as the official record); GC §60200, 

12168.7, EVC 1550, CCR 22620 

et seq.

BOARD CLERK / ELECTIONS - CONSOLIDATED

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-023

Chronological History of Board 

Members
P P Mag, Ppr Historical Value; GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-024

Elections - GENERAL, 

WORKING or ADMINISTRATION 

Files (Correspondence, Notices, 

Postings, Precinct Workers, 

County Election Services, etc.) 

2 years 2 years
 Mag, 

Ppr

Used for a model for the next 

election, GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-025

Elections - HISTORICAL File 

(Sample ballot, copies of all 

Resolutions (calling the election, 

canvass, etc.), election 

summary)

8 years P P
Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S No

Retained for Historical Value, GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-6

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-026

Elections - Petitions (Initiative, 

Recall or Referendum)

Results or 

Final 

Examination 

if No 

Election + 8 

months

Results or 

Final 

Examination 

if No 

Election + 8 

months

Ppr

Not accessible to the public; The 8 

month retention applies after 

election results, or final 

examination if no election.  Applies 

unless a legal/FPPC proceeding.  

EC §§17200, 17400

(End of Elections Section)

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-027

Ethics Training Certificates for 

Board Members and Others 
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr GC §53235.2(b)

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-028

FPPC 700 Series Forms 

(Statement of Economic 

Interests):  DESIGNATED 

EMPLOYEES & 

CONSULTANTS (specified in the 

District's Conflict of Interest 

code)

7 years 7 years
Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

2 years

District maintains original 

statements; GC §81009(e)(g)

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-029

FPPC 700 Series Forms 

(Statement of Economic 

Interests):  PUBLIC OFFICIALS 

(elected & not elected.  Includes 

District Board Members, General 

Manager, Assistant General 

Manager, Treasury  Manager,  

Treasurer & Assistant Treasurer)

7 years 7 years
Mfr, OD,  

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

2 years

District maintains copies only; 

original statements are filed with 

County, GC §81009(f)(g)

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-030

FPPC Form 801 (Gift to Agency 

Report) 
7 4 years 7 4 years Mag, Ppr

Must post on website; 2 CCR 

18944(c)(3)(G); GC §81009€; GC 

§60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-031

FPPC Form 802 (Tickets 

Provided by Agency Report)
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr

Must post on website for 4 years; 

GC §81009; GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-7

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-032

FPPC Form 803 (Behested 

Payment Report)
7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr GC §81009; GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-033

FPPC Form 804 (Agency Report 

of New Positions)
P 2 years P 2 years Mag, Ppr

FPPC Regulation 18734(c); GC 

§81009e; GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-034

FPPC Form 805 (Agency Report 

of Consultants)
P 2 years P 2 years Mag, Ppr

FPPC Regulation 18734(c); GC 

§81009e; GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-035

FPPC Form 806 (Agency Report 

of Public Official Appointments)
7 2 years 7 2 years Mag, Ppr

Must post on website; 22 CCR 

18702.5(b)(3); GC §60201, 

§81009(e) 

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-036 Historical Records P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S No

District Clerk Determines Historical 

Significance; GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-037

Improvement Districts / 

Assessment Districts:  Boundary 

Maps, Diagrams, District Folders

P P
Yes:  Before 

Termination

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-038

Local Area Formation 

Commission (LAFCO)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-039

Minutes:  District Board of 

Directors and Standing 

Committees and Subcommittees, 

any advisory board

P P Yes (all)
Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S No GC §60201(d)(3)

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-040 Ordinances P P Yes (all)

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S No GC §60201 et. seq.

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-041 Permits - Regulatory Agencies P P Mag, Ppr GC § 60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-042

Prop. 218 Fees & Charges:  

Ballots and/or protest letters 
2 years 2 years Ppr GC §53753(e)(2) 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-8

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-043

Prop. 218 Fees & Charges:  

Master Mailing List
2 years 2 years Ppr GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-044

Prop. 218 Fees & Charges:  

Undeliverable Mail 
3 months 3 months Ppr

Transitory records not retained in 

the ordinary course of business; 

GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-045

Public Records Act Requests / 

Subpoenas
2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-046

Records Retention Schedules / 

Authorization for Amendments to 

Retention Schedules 

(Resolutions)

10 years P P
Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD
GC §60201 et. seq.

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-047

Records Destruction 

Authorization Forms / 

Authorization to Destroy Paper to 

Rely on the Image as the Original 

10 years P P
Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD
GC §60201 et. seq.

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-048 Resolutions P P Yes (all)

Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr
S No GC §60201 et. seq.

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-049 Subject Matter Files

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years

Yes:  While 

Active 

Issues

Mag, Ppr GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-050 Subpoenas 2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201

GM / Board 

Clerk
GM-051 Vehicle Titles ("Pink Slips") Upon Sale Upon Sale Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

ENGINEERING - PLANNING & DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-9

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-052

Annexations / Boundary 

Changes / Detachments

Index, Maps, Documents

Upon 

Completion
P P Yes

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD
GC §60201 et seq.

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-053

CCTV Inspection Tapes / Video 

Inspections / Video Tapes or 

Digital Recordings - Jobs /  

Project Inspections (all lines)

10 years 10 years OD

Department preference; Statute of 

Limitations for written contracts 

are four years from the date of 

breach; errors and omissions is 10 

years; Death during construction is 

10 years; CCP §§337., 337.1(a), 

337.15 GC §60201

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-054

CEQA / NEPA Documents:  

Prepared by others for NON-

District Projects

(District comments) 

(Environmental Impact Reports 

(EIRs), Environmental 

Assessments, Negative 

Declarations, etc)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Until 

Project 

Completed

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD
District Preference; GC §60200

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-055

CEQA / NEPA Documents:  

Prepared for District Projects

(Environmental Impact Reports 

(EIRs), Environmental 

Assessments, Negative 

Declarations, etc)

P P

Yes:  Until 

Project 

Completed

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Usually filed in Project File; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-10

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-056

Connection Permits / Repair 

Permits / Single Water 

Connection Permits / Single 

Sewer Connection Permits

P P Yes
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-057

Encroachment Permits issued by 

outside agencies (e.g. for District 

construction)

Expiration of 

Permit + 4 

years

Expiration of 

Permit + 4 

years

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  2 

years

Covers Statute of Limitations for 

written contracts; CCP §§336(a), 

337 et. seq., GC §60201

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-058

Job Files / Engineering Project 

Files / CIP (Capital Improvement 

Project) Files - Administration 

File:  

Project Administration,  

Advertising, Certified Payrolls, 

Complaints (project-related), 

Cost of Construction, Fee & 

Deposit Reimbursements, 

Insurance Certificates from 

Contractors, Labor Compliance, 

Logs, Performance 

Bonds/Surety, Project Security 

files, Project Schedules,  Punch 

Lists, Real Estate Appraisals, 

etc.

Upon 

Completion

10 years or 

After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

required, 

whichever is 

longer

Completion 

+ 10 years 

or After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

required, 

whichever is 

longer

Yes:  Until 

Completed
Mag, Ppr

Statute of Limitations for written 

contracts are four years from the 

date of breach; errors and 

omissions is 10 years; Death 

during construction is 10 years; 

CCP §§337., 337.1(a), 337.15 GC 

§60201, Contractor has retention 

requirements in 48 CFR 4.703

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-11

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-059

Job Files / Engineering Project 

Files / CIP (Capital Improvement 

Project) Files - Permanent File - 

Large Format Drawings

Design Drawings (finals), Record 

Drawings ("As Builts")

Upon 

Completion
P P Yes:  ALL

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

For Disaster Recovery Purposes; 

Final environmental 

determinations are required to be 

kept a "reasonable period of time"; 

14 CCR §15095(c); GC §60201 et 

seq.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-12

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-060

Job Files / Engineering Project 

Files / CIP (Capital Improvement 

Project) Files - Permanent File:  

Specifications, RFIs/RFPs, 

Change Orders, Construction 

Photos, Correspondence, Close-

Out/Acceptance, Declarations of 

Restrictive Covenants (DORCs), 

Deeds, Easements, 

Encroachment Permits, Field 

Inspection Reports, Materials 

Testing Reports, Bills of Material 

/ Substitutions Environmental 

Documents, Notice of 

Completion, Regulatory Agency 

Approvals, Right of Way, Shop 

Drawings, Soils Reports, 

Structural Calculations, Surveys, 

Permanent Encroachment 

Permits, Rights-of-Ways, 

Submittals, Materials Submittals, 

SAMPs, SWPPP, Variances, etc.

Upon 

Completion
P P

Yes:  Until 

Completed

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

For disaster preparedness 

purposes; GC §60201 et seq.

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-061 Land Surveys / Survey books P P Yes
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-13

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-062 Master Plans P Yes
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-063 Permits
Expiration + 

2 years

Expiration + 

2 years

Yes:  Until 

Expired

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S No

Department preference; GC 

§60201

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-064

Private Development:  

Subdivisions / Tract Files - 

Administrative File

Correspondence, Fee 

Calculations, Inspection Reports, 

Incidents, Project Schedules etc.

Completion 

+ 10 years

Completion 

+ 10 years 
Yes

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Statute of Limitations for written 

contracts are four years from the 

date of breach; errors and 

omissions is 10 years; Death 

during construction is 10 years; 

CCP §§337., 337.1(a), 337.15 GC 

§60201, Contractor has retention 

requirements in 48 CFR 4.703

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-065

Private Development:  

Subdivisions / Tract Files - 

Permanent File

Agreements, Easements, Final 

Drawings, Materials Testing 

Reports, Rights of Way, Rights of 

Entry, Studies & Reports 

(Hydrology, Geotechnical, etc.) 

P P Yes
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-14

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-066 Real Estate Appraisals 5 years P P Mag, Ppr

Department preference; USPAP 

(Uniform Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice) 

ethical standards require 

appraisers to retain records for at 

least 5 years, or final disposition + 

2 years, if used in a judicial 

proceeding; GC §60201

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-067
Sewer Improvement Districts / 

Assessment Districts
P P Yes

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD
GC §60201 et seq.

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-068 Survey Books & Notes P P Yes
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-069 Trunk Lines P P Yes
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

GM / 

Engineerin

g 

GM-070
Underground Service Alerts 

(USAs) 
3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (required 

for 3 years); the warrantee period 

for work done is usually 5 years, 

the Statute of Limitations for some 

work may be up to 10 years; CCP 

§337 et seq., GC §§4216.2(d) & 

4216.3(d), 60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  GENERAL MANAGER, IT & BOARD CLERK Page GM-15

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

GM / IT GM-071 Backups - Daily 

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes Mag.

Used for Disaster Recovery 

Purposes Only; Considered a copy 

and can be destroyed when no 

longer required; GC §60200 et 

seq.

GM / IT GM-072 Backups - Weekly

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes Mag.

STORE OFF-SITE.  Used for 

Disaster Recovery Purposes Only; 

Considered a copy and can be 

destroyed when no longer 

required; stored off-site; GC 

§60200 et seq.

GM / IT GM-073
Geographic Information System 

(GIS)
Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag

Data is interrelated; GC §60200, 

60201 et seq.

GM / IT GM-074
Network Configuration Maps & 

Plans

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes Mag.

Preliminary documents not 

retained in the ordinary course of 

business; GC §60201 et seq.

GM / IT GM-075
Software Licenses, Warrantees, 

Installation Media

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag.
Department preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

GM / IT GM-076

WORM / DVD-r / CD-r / Blue Ray-

R or other unalterable media 

that does not permit additions, 

deletions, or changes 

P P OD

For legal compliance for 

Trustworthy Electronic Records 

(when the electronic record serves 

as the official record); GC 60200, 

12168.7, EVC 1550, 2 CCR 22620 

et seq..

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  HUMAN RESOURCES Page HR-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human 

Resources
HR-001

Accident / Incident / Injury / Damage 

Reports:  Employees that Declined 

Medical Attention

(See Workers Compensation for 

others)

2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §§12946, 60201

 Human 

Resources
HR-002

Affirmative Action Complaints - 

Department of Fair Employment & 

Housing (DFEH) or Equal 

Opportunity Commission (EEOC)

Separation + 

3 years

Separation + 

3 years
Mag, Ppr

Department preference (same as 

the Personnel File); All State and 

Federal laws require retention until 

final disposition of formal 

complaint; State requires 2 years 

after action is taken; 2 CCR 

11013(c); GC §§12946, 60201

Human 

Resources
HR-003

Applications for Employment or 

Resumes / Recruitment Files:  

Solicited:  Brochure, advertisement, 

unsuccessful applications,  (with or 

without interviews), selection 

materials, interview notes, results, 

etc.

3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; EEOC / 

FLSA / ADEA (Age) requires 1-3 

years; State Law requires 2 - 3 

years; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(i), 29 

CFR 1602.14 et seq; 2 CCR 

11013(c)  7287.0(c)(2), GC 

§§12946, 60201

Human 

Resources
HR-004 Billing:  COBRA and Retiree Medical 

Termination 

of Service + 

7 years

Termination 

of Service + 

7 years

Yes:  During 

Service 

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 1 

year

Retained to cover auditing 

standards; General rule under 

ERISA (Employee Retirement 

Income Security Act) is 7 years; 29 

CFR 1627.3(b)(2); 29 USC 1027; 

GC §60201

Human 

Resources
HR-005

Classification and Compensation 

Studies / Surveys

When No 

Longer 

Required 

When No 

Longer 

Required 

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  HUMAN RESOURCES Page HR-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

 Human 

Resources
HR-006 DMV Pull Notices

When 

Superseded 

When 

Superseded
Mag, Ppr

District preference (DMV record 

that the District considers a non-

record used for reference); DMV 

audits every 2 years; Bureau of 

National Affairs recommends 2 

years for all supplementary 

Personnel records; GC §60201

Human 

Resources
HR-007

Drug and Alcohol Testing / D.O.T 

files (ALL Files - Random, Post-

Accident & Reasonable Suspicion 

Tests, refusals, annual summaries, 

etc.)

2 years 3 years 5 years Ppr

Department preference; D.O.T. 

Requires 5 years for positive tests, 

refusals, annual summaries, etc, 1 

year for negative tests; EEOC / 

FLSA / ADEA (Age) requires 3 

years physical examinations; State 

Law requires 2 years; 229 CFR 

1627.3(b)(1)(v), GC §§12946, 

60201, 49 CFR 655.71 et seq.; 49 

CFR 382.401 et seq.  49 CFR 

653.71

Human 

Resources
HR-008 Employee Investigations

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 3 

years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 3 

years

Mag, Ppr

Department preference; EEOC / 

FLSA / ADEA (Age) statue of 

limitations is 1-3 years; State Law 

requires 2 years; Reports & Data 

used to compile EEO reports are 

required for 3 years; 29 CFR 1602 

et seq & 1627.3(a)(5) and (6), 2 

CCR 11013(c)  7287 et seq., 8 

CCR §11040.7( c), GC §§12946, 

60201 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  HUMAN RESOURCES Page HR-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

 Human 

Resources
HR-009 I-9s

Separation + 

3 years 

Separation + 

3 years

Yes:  Until 

Separation

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes: When 

Inactive

Non-citizens must re-certify 

periodically; RICA recommends 1 

year from termination or 3 years 

from hiring, whichever is later; 

EEOC / FLSA / ADEA (Age) 

requires 3 years for "any other 

forms of employment inquiry"; 

State Law requires 2 -3 years; INA 

274A(b)(3); INS Rule 274a.1(b)(2); 

8 CFR 274a.2; 29 CFR 

1627.3(b)(i); GC §§12946, 34090 

Human 

Resources
HR-010

Insurance Policies - Employee 

Benefit Policies  (Benefits: Health, 

Eye, Dental, Life Insurance, Long 

Term Disability, State Disability, 

Unemployment Insurance, Workers 

Compensation Policy, etc)  

Plan 

Termination
10 years

Plan 

Termination 

+ 10 years

Yes:  Before 

Expiration

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S No

Department preference to be 

consistent with District-wide 

standards; EEOC / ADEA (Age) 

requires 1 year after benefit plan 

termination; Federal law requires 6 

years after filing date; State Law 

requires 2 years after action; 29 

CFR 1627.3(b)(2); 29 USC 1027; 

GC §§12946, 60201

Human 

Resources
HR-011 Job Descriptions

Superseded 

+ 3 years

Superseded 

+ 3 years

Yes:  Before 

Superseded
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  HUMAN RESOURCES Page HR-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Human 

Resources
HR-012

Personnel Files - General

(Includes Application, Awards, DMV 

Reports, Disciplinary Actions, 

Certifications, Commendations,  

Disaster Service Workers Oaths, 

Employment Verifications, 

Evaluations, Grievances, Licenses, 

Personnel Action Forms, Policy 

acknowledgements, Waiver of 

responsibility for voluntary activities, 

etc.  - Excludes Medical Records)    

Separation + 

6 years

Separation + 

6  years

Yes:  Until 

Separation

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes: After 

Separation

Department Preference; statute of 

limitations for retirement benefits is 

6 years from last action; 

EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 

3 years for promotion, demotion, 

transfer, selection, or discharge; 

State Law requires 2 -3 years;  29 

CFR 1602.31 & 1627.3(b)(ii); 29 

CFR 1602.14; GC §§12946, 

60201; 29 USC 1113; GC §3105

Human 

Resources
HR-013

Personnel Files - Medical  

(Includes pre-employment physicals, 

hazmat exposure records, hearing 

tests, pulmonary tests, Class B 

medicals,  and backgrounds & 

fingerprint clearances)

Separation + 

30 years

Separation + 

30 years

Yes:  Until 

Separation

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes: When 

Inactive

Department preference; Files 

maintained separately; Claims can 

be made for 30 years for toxic 

substance exposure; 8 CCR 

§3204(d)(1) et seq., 29 CFR 

1910.1020(d)(1)(i), 29 CFR 

1602.14; GC §§12946, 60201

Human 

Resources
HR-014 Workers Compensation Files ALL

Separation + 

5 years

25 years or 

Termination 

of Benefits, 

whichever is 

longer

Separation + 

30 years or 

Termination 

of Benefits, 

whichever is 

longer

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S

Yes: When 

Inactive

Department preference; Claims 

can be made for 30 years for toxic 

substance exposure; 8 CCR 

10102; 8 CCR 15400.2, 8 CCR 

§3204(d)(1) et seq., 29 CFR 

1910.1020, GC §§12946, 60201, 

CCP §337 et seq.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  HUMAN RESOURCES Page HR-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

RISK MANAGEMENT

Human 

Resources / 

Risk Manage.

HR-015 Claims
Final 

Resolution
5 years

Final 

Resolution + 

5 years

Yes:  Until 

Resolution

Mag, OD,  

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 5 

years

Department Preference; Covers 

various statute of limitations; CCP 

§§ 337 et seq.; GC §§ 911.2, 

945.6, 60201, 60201.6; PC §832.5

Human 

Resources / 

Risk Manage.

HR-016 Facility Inspections 2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201

Human 

Resources / 

Risk Manage.

HR-017
Insurance Policies (Property and 

Liability)
2 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201

Human 

Resources / 

Risk Manage.

HR-018

Insurance Certificates from Other 

Agencies/Organizations Submitted 

as Proof of Coverage for Facility Use

2 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201

Human 

Resources / 

Risk Manage.

HR-019 Lawsuits / Litigation
Final 

Resolution
5 years

Final 

Resolution + 

5 years

Yes:  Until 

Resolution

Mag, OD,  

Ppr
S

Yes:  After 5 

years

Department Preference; Covers 

various statute of limitations; CCP 

§§ 337 et seq.; GC §§ 911.2, 

945.6, 60201, 60201.6; PC §832.5

SAFETY

Human 

Resources / 

Safety

HR-020
Cal-OSHA Inspections & Citations, 

Log 200, 300, 300A, 301, etc.
7 years 7 years Ppr

Department Preference; Calif. 

Labor Division is required to keep 

their records 7 years; OSHA 

requires 5 years; State law 

requires 2 years; OMB 1220-0029, 

8 CCR 14300.33(a); 29 CFR 

1904.33, 29 CFR 1904.44; GC 

§60201 et seq.; LC §6429c 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 4.0  RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  HUMAN RESOURCES Page HR-6

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Human 

Resources / 

Safety

HR-021
Emergency Exercises / Drills / After 

Action Reports

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Until 

Superseded

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  2 

years

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Human 

Resources / 

Safety

HR-022 Emergency Response Plan

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes:  Until 

Superseded

Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  2 

years

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Human 

Resources / 

Safety

HR-023
Illness and Injury Prevention 

Program

Minimum of 

Superseded 

+ 2 years

Minimum of 

Superseded 

+ 2 years

  
Mag, OD, 

Ppr
S / I

Yes:  When 

Super-

seded

Consistent with District-wide 

standards; GC §60201

Human 

Resources / 

Safety

HR-024 Loss Runs 

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 10 

years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 10 

years

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (actuary 

wants 10 years of data); GC 

§60201 et seq.

Human 

Resources / 

Safety

HR-025
Safety Committee / Safety Steering 

Committee
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 2.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PARKS & RECREATION Page P&R-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-001

Accident / Incident / First Aid / 

Mishap Reports - Public (Minor 

injuries - bandages, scratches, etc)

2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-002

Activity / Special Programs / Special 

Event Files

Children's Programs, Cultural Arts, 

Sports, Seniors, Filming, Theatre 

Programs etc.

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 2 

years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 2 

years

Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-003

Art Loan Agreements / Display 

Agreements / Waiver of Liability

Completion + 

1 year

Completion + 

1 year

Mag, 

Mfr, OD,  

Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-004 Check In List / Sign In Lists

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference 

(Transitory record not retained 

in the ordinary course of 

business); GC §60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-005

Community Center Committee

AGENDAS, AGENDA PACKETS.

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
  Mag, Ppr

Brown Act challenges must be 

filed within 30 or 90 days of 

action; GC §§60201, 

54960.1(c)(1)

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-006

Community Center Committee

MINUTES & BYLAWS

P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

10 years

Notes taken to facilitate the 

writing of the minutes can be 

destroyed after minutes have 

been adopted; GC §60201 et 

seq.

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-007

Contracts: Class Instructors

Includes Insurance Certificates and 

Administration Records

Completion 5 years 
Completion + 

5 years

Yes:  

Before 

Completion

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S/I

Yes:  

Upon 

Completio

n

Department preference; 

Statute of Limitations: 

Contracts & Spec's=4 years; 

CCP §337 et. seq., GC §60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-008 Environmental Monitoring

Completion + 

2 years

Completion + 

2 years
Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 2.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PARKS & RECREATION Page P&R-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-009

Evaluations / Surveys (Program 

Evaluations)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference 

(Transitory record not retained 

in the ordinary course of 

business); GC §60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-010

Facility Use Rental Contracts / Field 

Use Contracts
2 years 2 years

Yes:  

Before 

Event

Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Lead Dept. P&R-011
Grants (UNSUCCESSFUL 

Applications, Correspondence)
2 years 2 years   Mag, Ppr GC §60201

Lead Dept. P&R-012

Grants / CDBG / Reimbursable 

Claims (SUCCESSFUL Reports, 

other records required to pass the 

funding agency's audit, if required)

Applications (successful), grant 

agreement, program rules, regulations & 

procedures, reports to grant funding 

agencies, correspondence, audit 

records, completion records

2 years

After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

Required - 

Minimum 5 

years

After Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

required - 

Minimum 5 

years

  Mag, Ppr

District Preference (may 

include records pertaining to 

independent contractor's 

compensation, or expense 

reimbursement); Meets 

auditing standards; Uniform 

Admin. Requirements for 

Grants to Local Governments 

is 3 years from expenditure 

report or final payment of 

grantee or subgrantee; 21 CFR 

1403.36 & 1403.42(b); 24 CFR 

85.42, 91.105(h), 92.505, & 

570.502(b), 28 CFR 66.42; 29 

CFR 97.42; 40 CFR 31.42; 44 

CFR 13.42; 45 CFR 92.42; 

OMB Circular A-133; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 2.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PARKS & RECREATION Page P&R-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-013

Landscape CIP Projects (Capital 

Improvement Project) Files - 

Administration File:  

Project Administration,  Advertising, 

Certified Payrolls, Complaints 

(project-related), Cost of 

Construction, Fee & Deposit 

Reimbursements, Insurance 

Certificates from Contractors, Labor 

Compliance, Logs, Performance 

Bonds/Surety, Project Security files, 

Project Schedules,  Punch Lists, 

Real Estate Appraisals, etc.

Upon 

Completion

10 years or 

After 

Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

required, 

whichever is 

longer

Completion + 

10 years or 

After Funding 

Agency 

Audit, if 

required, 

whichever is 

longer

Yes:  Until 

Completed
Mag, Ppr

Statute of Limitations for 

written contracts are four years 

from the date of breach; errors 

and omissions is 10 years; 

Death during construction is 10 

years; CCP §§337., 337.1(a), 

337.15 GC §60201, Contractor 

has retention requirements in 

48 CFR 4.703

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-014

Landscape CIP Projects (Capital 

Improvement Project) Files - 

Landscape Plans / Irrigation 

Plans (Large Format Drawings)

Design Drawings (finals), Record 

Drawings ("As Builts")

Upon 

Completion
P P Yes:  ALL

Mag, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

For Disaster Recovery 

Purposes; Final environmental 

determinations are required to 

be kept a "reasonable period of 

time"; 14 CCR §15095(c); GC 

§60201 et seq.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 2.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PARKS & RECREATION Page P&R-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-015

Landscape CIP Projects (Capital 

Improvement Project) Files - 

Permanent File:  

Specifications, RFIs/RFPs, Change 

Orders, Construction Photos, 

Correspondence, Close-

Out/Acceptance, Declarations of 

Restrictive Covenants (DORCs), 

Deeds, Easements, Encroachment 

Permits, Field Inspection Reports, 

Materials Testing Reports, Bills of 

Material / Substitutions 

Environmental Documents, Notice 

of Completion, Regulatory Agency 

Approvals, Right of Way, Shop 

Drawings, Soils Reports, Structural 

Calculations, Surveys, Permanent 

Encroachment Permits, Rights-of-

Ways, Submittals, Materials 

Submittals, SAMPs, SWPPP, 

Variances, etc. 

Upon 

Completion
P P

Yes:  Until 

Completed

Mag, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

For disaster preparedness 

purposes; GC §60201 et seq.

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-016

Landscape Committee

 

AGENDAS, AGENDA PACKETS.

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
  Mag, Ppr

Brown Act challenges must be 

filed within 30 or 90 days of 

action; GC §§60201, 

54960.1(c)(1)

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-017

Landscape Committee

MINUTES & BYLAWS

P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

10 years

Notes taken to facilitate the 

writing of the minutes can be 

destroyed after minutes have 

been adopted; GC §60201 et 

seq.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 2.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PARKS & RECREATION Page P&R-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. P&R-018

Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) 

/ Safety Data Sheet (SDS) / 

Chemical Use Report Form (or 

records of the chemical / substance 

/ agent, where & when it was used)

While 

Chemical In 

Use

30 years 30 years

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes (after 

inactive)

Previous MSDS may be 

obtained from a service; MSDS 

may be destroyed as long as a 

record of the chemical / 

substance / agent, where & 

when it was used is maintained 

for 30 years; Applies to 

qualified employers; Claims 

can be made for 30 years for 

toxic substance exposures; 8 

CCR 3204(d)(1)(B)(2 and 3), 

29 CFR 1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC 

§60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-019

Parks & Recreation Commission

 

AGENDAS, AGENDA PACKETS.

Minimum 2 

years

Minimum 2 

years
  Mag, Ppr

Brown Act challenges must be 

filed within 30 or 90 days of 

action; GC §§60201, 

54960.1(c)(1)

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-020

Parks & Recreation Commission

MINUTES & BYLAWS

P P Yes

Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 

Ppr

S
Yes:  After 

10 years

Notes taken to facilitate the 

writing of the minutes can be 

destroyed after minutes have 

been adopted; GC §60201 et 

seq.

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-021 Pesticide Application 2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference 

(agricultural pesticide records 

are required for 2 years); GC 

§60201; 3 CCR 6623, 40 CFR 

171.11 et seq.

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-022 Playground Inspections 2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-023 Recreation Database Indefinite Indefinite Mag

Department Preference; data is 

interrelated; GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 2.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  PARKS & RECREATION Page P&R-6

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Records 

Center)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper 

after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-024

Registration Forms / Reservation 

Forms / Application Forms / Fee & 

Charge / Liability Forms / Release 

of Liability Forms / Permissions / 

etc.:  Camps, Field Trips, 

Authorization to give Medicine, etc.

2 years 2 years Ppr GC §60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-025

Sign-in / Sign-out sheets (Day 

camp, etc.)

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference 

(Transitory record not retained 

in the ordinary course of 

business); GC §60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-026 Special Events & Programs

When No 

Longer 

Required -  

Minimum 2 

years

When No 

Longer 

Required - 

Minimum 2 

years

Mag, Ppr
Department preference; GC 

§60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-027

Swimming Pool Chemical Addition 

Logs / Records 
2 years 28 years 30 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 8 CCR 

§3204(d)(1) et seq., 29 CFR 

1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC § 

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-028

Swimming Pool Inspections / Health 

Inspections 
2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Parks & 

Recreation
P&R-029 Waivers of Liability 2 years 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 11/19/2014 

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   WATER & WASTEWATER Page W-1

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

WASTEWATER

Wastewater W-001

CCTV Collection Line Inspection 

Tapes / Video Inspections / Video 

Tapes or Digital Recordings

P P Mag
Department Preference; GC 

§60201 et seq.

Wastewater W-043 Confined Space Entries 2 years 2 years   Mag, Ppr
8 CCR 5157(d)(14) & (e)(6); 29 

CFR 1919.146(e)(6)  GC §60201

Wastewater W-002 Complaints
 Minimum 2 

years

 Minimum 2 

years
  Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Finance W-003 Invoices for Water Line Repairs 7 years 7 years Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§6020o et seq.

Wastewater W-047

Generator Logs / Generator 

Operation Logs (for fixed / 

stationary generators)

3 2 years 3 2 years   Mag, Ppr AQMD Rule 1470; GC §60201

Wastewater W-048

Generator Logs / Generator 

Operation Logs (for portable / 

Emergency generators)

5 years 5 years   Mag, Ppr

AQMD Rule 1470; Form 

400–E–13a instructions, GC 

§60201

Wastewater W-004

Lift Station - Inspections, 

Maintenance, Repairs, Service 

Requests, Alarm Recording, Logs, 

Charts, Flow Monitoring, Voltage 

Readings, Permits

 Minimum 20 

years

 Minimum 20 

years
Mag, Ppr

Department Policy; WC 

§13263.2(b) et seq.; 40 CFR 

122.41(j)(2)GC §60201

Wastewater W-005

Maintenance, Cleaning, Repairs, 

Stoppage Calls, Spills, Line 

Replacement

10 years 10 years Mag, Ppr

Department Policy; WC 

§13263.2(b) et seq.; 40 CFR 

122.41(j)(2)GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   WATER & WASTEWATER Page W-2

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. W-006

Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) 

/ Safety Data Sheet (SDS) / 

Chemical Use Report Form (or 

records of the chemical / 

substance / agent, where & when it 

was used)

While 

Chemical In 

Use

30 years 30 years
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes (after 

inactive)

Previous MSDS may be obtained 

from a service; MSDS may be 

destroyed as long as a record of 

the chemical / substance / agent, 

where & when it was used is 

maintained for 30 years; Applies 

to qualified employers; Claims 

can be made for 30 years for 

toxic substance exposures; 8 

CCR 3204(d)(1)(B)(2 and 3), 29 

CFR 1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC 

§60201

Wastewater W-045 NPDES Permit 
Superseded 

+ 3 years

Superseded 

+ 3 years
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference;  40 CFR 

122.41(j)(2); 40 CFR 122.41(j)(2) 

& 40 CFR 141.33(b)

Wastewater W-046 NPDES Permit  Complaints 3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference;  40 CFR 

122.41(j)(2); 40 CFR 122.41(j)(2) 

& 40 CFR 141.33(b)

Lead Dept. W-007
Operations & Maintenance 

Manuals / O & M Manuals 

Disposal of 

Equipment

Disposal of 

Equipment

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Wastewater W-008
Operator Log Books / Treatment 

Plant Log Books
20 years 20 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference;  5 years 

for sewage sludge and removal; 

3 years for NPDES; 40 CFR 

122.41(j)(2); 40 CFR 122.41(j)(2) 

& 40 CFR 141.33(b)

Wastewater W-009
Permits:  Encroachment Permits,  

Operating Permits, etc.
P P Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   WATER & WASTEWATER Page W-3

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Wastewater W-010
Permits:  Pressure Vessels, 

Boilers, etc.

When 

Superseded

When 

Superseded
Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Wastewater W-049
PHA (Process Hazard Analysis) / 

Process Safety Information

Life of the 

Process

Life of the 

Process
  Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (required 

to be updated and revalidated 

every 5 years, which are required 

to be retained for the life of the 

process); 8 CCR 5189; 19 CCR 

2760.2, 29 CFR 1910; GC 

§60201

Wastewater W-011 Planning and Scheduling

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

Mag, Ppr GC §60201

Wastewater W-012
Sanitary Spills and Overflows 

(SSOs)
5 years 5 years

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Required for a minimum of 5 

years; 40 CFR 122.41(j)(2); 

SWRCB Order 2006-03; 40 CFR 

122.41(j)(2); GC §34090

Wastewater W-013
SCADA Database (Supervisory 

Control and Data Acquisition)
Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag

Data is interrelated; system 

qualifies as a "trusted system"; 

GC §§60201, 12168.7

Wastewater W-014 Sewage Sludge Removal 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

5 years for sewage sludge and 

removal; 3 years for NPDES; 40 

CFR 122.41(j)(2); 40 CFR 

122.41(j)(2) & 40 CFR 141.33(b)

Wastewater W-044

Source Control / FOG (Fats, Oil & 

Grease) / POTW (Publicly Owned 

Treatment Works) Pre-treatment of 

wastewater

3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr 40 CFR 403.12; GC §60200

Lead Dept. W-015
Standard Operating Procedures / 

SOPs

Superseded 

+ 5 years

Superseded 

+ 5 years

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   WATER & WASTEWATER Page W-4

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Wastewater W-016

Street Opening Permits / Street Cut 

Permits / Temporary 

Encroachment Permits (County 

owns the streets)

2 years 2 years   Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Lead Dept. W-017
Underground Service Alerts 

(USAs) 
3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (required 

for 3 years); the warrantee period 

for work done is usually 5 years, 

the Statute of Limitations for 

some work may be up to 10 

years; CCP §337 et seq., GC 

§§4216.2(d) & 4216.3(d), 60201

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

W-018

Work Orders / Service Requests   

CMMS DATABASE (Computerized 

Maintenance Management 

System)

Indefinite Indefinite   Mag Data is interrelated; GC §60201

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

W-019

Work Orders / Service Requests - 

All Information Entered in CMMS 

Database

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag Ppr
Preliminary drafts (the database 

is the original); GC §60201

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

W-020

Work Orders / Service Requests - 

NOT entered in CMMS Database 

(or partial information entered into 

CMMS Database)

(Division providing service retains 

originals; Division requesting 

service is considered a copy)

5 years 5 years   Mag Ppr

City Preference; CCP §§338 et 

seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 

§§945.6, GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   WATER & WASTEWATER Page W-5

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

WATER (POTABLE WATER) & LABORATORY

Water W-021
Backflow Test Results /  Backflow 

Assembly Test Reports 
5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; 17 CCR 

7605(f); GC §60201

Water W-022 Conservation Programs 5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr
Department Preference (meets 

auditing standards); GC §60201

Water W-023

Customer Concerns / Customer 

Complaints: Odor / Taste / Visual 

Complaints (Correspondence)

5 years 5 years Mag, Ppr

5 years is required in State and 

Federal law for any complaints; 

40 CFR 122.41(j)(2) & 40 CFR 

141.33(b); 22 CCR 64453(a)

Water W-024
Fire Hydrant Flow Tests 

(Development or Maintenance)

 Minimum 10 

years

 Minimum 10 

years
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC 

§60201

Water W-025
Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Bacteriological and Organics
10 years 10 years

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes - After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; Actual 

laboratory reports may be kept, 

or data may be transferred to 

tabular summaries; State law 

requires 5 years; 40 CFR 

141.33(a) and (b)(1); 22 CCR 

§64470

Water W-026

Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Chemical (Includes Chlorine 

Residuals)

12 years 12 years
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes - After 

QC & OD

Department preference; State 

law requires 12 years, Federal 

10 years; 40 CFR 141.33(a);  22 

CCR §64692

Water W-027
Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Lead & Copper 
18 years 18 years

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I

Yes - After 

QC & OD

Required for 12 years or 2 

compliance cycles; 40 CFR 

141.91

Water W-028
Lab Reports & Chains of Custody:  

Wastewater Treatment
15 years 15 years Mag, Ppr

If treating water, required for 5 

years; 40 CFR 122.41(j)(2)

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   WATER & WASTEWATER Page W-6

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. W-029

Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) 

/ Safety Data Sheet (SDS) / 

Chemical Use Report Form (or 

records of the chemical / 

substance / agent, where & when it 

was used)

While 

Chemical In 

Use

30 years 30 years
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes (after 

inactive)

Previous MSDS may be obtained 

from a service; MSDS may be 

destroyed as long as a record of 

the chemical / substance / agent, 

where & when it was used is 

maintained for 30 years; Applies 

to qualified employers; Claims 

can be made for 30 years for 

toxic substance exposures; 8 

CCR 3204(d)(1)(B)(2 and 3), 29 

CFR 1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC 

§60201

Lead Dept. W-030
Operations & Maintenance 

Manuals / O & M Manuals 

Disposal of 

Equipment

Disposal of 

Equipment

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Lead Dept. W-031

Pre-Trip Inspections / DOT 

Program / Vehicle Safety Checks / 

Daily Vehicle Inspections / Daily 

Equipment Checks 

2 years  2 years Ppr GC §60201

Water W-032

SCADA Database (Water) 

(Supervisory Control and Data 

Acquisition)

Indefinite Indefinite Yes Mag

Data is interrelated; system 

qualifies as a "trusted system"; 

GC §§60201, 12168.7

Lead Dept. W-033
Standard Operating Procedures / 

SOPs

Superseded 

+ 5 years

Superseded 

+ 5 years

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S / I No

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   WATER & WASTEWATER Page W-7

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. W-034
Underground Service Alerts 

(USAs) 
3 years 3 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference (required 

for 3 years); the warrantee period 

for work done is usually 5 years, 

the Statute of Limitations for 

some work may be up to 10 

years; CCP §337 et seq., GC 

§§4216.2(d) & 4216.3(d), 60201

Water W-035
Videos - Water Wells, Repairs, 

Reservoirs, Tanks, etc.
P P Mag

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Water W-036
Water Production Reads / Reports 

(to State DPH & DWR)
5  years 5 years Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Meets 

California Department of Health 

requirements (3 years); GC 

§60201

Water W-037

Water Resources Planning 

Historical Reports / Water 

Assessments

P P   
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

City Preference; CCP §§338 et 

seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 

§§945.6, GC §60201

Board Clerk W-038 Water Supply Agreements

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Copies - 

When No 

Longer 

Required

Yes
Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S No GC §60200

Water W-039
Well Records (includes Destroyed 

or Abandoned Wells)
P P

Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr
S

Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; GC 

§60201

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

W-040

Work Orders / Service Requests   

CMMS DATABASE (Computerized 

Maintenance Management 

System)

Indefinite Indefinite   Mag Data is interrelated; GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:   WATER & WASTEWATER Page W-8

Office of 

Record
Retention No. Records Description Retention / Disposition Comments / Reference

(OFR)
Active          

(in office)

Inactive    

(Off-site, 

OD or Mfr)

Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options

Image:  

I=Import 

M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 

Paper after 

Imaged & 

QC'd?

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for District-Wide Standards.                                                                                               

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                          

Litigation, complaints, claims, audits, pending public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

W-041

Work Orders / Service Requests - 

All Information Entered in CMMS 

Database

When No 

Longer 

Required

When No 

Longer 

Required

  Mag Ppr
Preliminary drafts (the database 

is the original); GC §60201

Division 

Providing 

Service / 

Work

W-042

Work Orders / Service Requests - 

NOT entered in CMMS Database 

(or partial information entered into 

CMMS Database)

(Division providing service retains 

originals; Division requesting 

service is considered a copy)

5 years 5 years   Mag Ppr

City Preference; CCP §§338 et 

seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 

§§945.6, GC §60201

Town of Discovery Bay CSD  ©1995-2014 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Adopted: 11/19/2014

Agenda Item C-4



Agenda Item C-5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1  

 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
February 2017 

 

Town of Discovery Bay, CA 

2740 Days of Safe Operations 

128,200 worked hours since last recordable incident  

 

 

 

 

 

TRAINING: 

Safety, Operations, & Equipment 

 

Safety  Hours 

West Monthly Regional Safety Webinar 
Weekly Safety Topics 
LOTO 

4.0 

Operations  

New Panel View Screen 0.5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORTS SUBMITTED TO REGULATORY AGENCIES 

 

Monthly Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) 
Monthly electronic State Monitoring Report (eSMR) 
Monthly Coliform Report, State Water Board (WD) 
Annual BioSoild Report , EPA 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2  

WATER SERVICES 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Note: Well 5 is active, stand by only. 

 

 

 

 

2017 Monthly Water Production Table (MG)  

 

January February March  April May June 

40 33     

July August September October November December 

      
 

 

 

 
 

# of  

Active Wells 
Water Produced  

(MG) 
Chemical (Hypo)  

Delivered 
Fire Hydrant Flushing 

6 33 1170 4 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 3  

 

 

Bacteriological Test Results: 

 
Routine Bacteria  

Samples Collected 

No. Total Coliform 

Positives 

No. Fecal/E. coli 

Positives 
Brown Water  

Calls 

16 0 0 0 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Reduction 
 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 4  

 
 

WASTEWATER SERVICE 
 

 

Wastewater Laboratory Analysis 

Blue – new parameter added 

Around 6’’ of rainfall in Feb. 

 

 

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 

 

NPDES Related  

Excursions 

Permit Parameter 

 

NPDES Parameter 

 Limit 

 Actual Parameter 

Result 

0   N/A N/A  N/A 

 

 

 

 

Bacteriological Test Results 

  

Routine Bacteria  
Samples Collected 

No. Total Coliform 
Positives 

No. Fecal/E. coli 
Positives 

7-Day Median  
Excursion 

11 0 0 0 

 

     WW Effluent 

Parameter 

 

Permit 

Limits 

 

January 

Lab Data 

 

February 

Lab Data 

Flow, MG Effluent, monthly total -------------------- 40 38 

Flow,  MG Daily Influent Flow, avg. N/A 1.3 1.4 

Flow,  MG Daily Discharge Flow, avg.  2.35  1.3 1.3 

Effluent BOD5, lbs/d, monthly avg. 350 35 24 

Effluent TSS, lbs/d, monthly avg. 525 93 40 

Effluent BOD5, mg/L, monthly avg. 20 3 2 

Effluent TSS, mg/L, monthly avg. 30 8 4 

Total Coli form 7 day Median Max 23 23 0 

Total Coli form Daily Maximum 240 130 0 

% Removal  BOD5, monthly avg. 85% min. 98 99 

% Removal, TSS, monthly avg. 85% min. 93 98 

Electrical Conductivity, umhos/cm annual avg. 2100 2050 2030 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5  

 

 

 

Lift Station Status 

 

  

 

 

COLLECTION 
 

 66,589 ft. of collection sanitary sewer line has been assessed 

 737 ft. flushed 

 Inspected 0 manhole & covers 

 221 manhole & covers has been inspected.  

 Performed weekly lift station inspections. 

  

 

 

 

MAINTENANCE 
  

 Preventive and Corrective 

Total # of WO’s Completed Total Hours 

226 174 

  

    Work Order Back-Log 

Aging 8 - 30 Days  Aging > 30 Days 

37  1 

 

 

Call & Emergency Responses 

Call Outs                                       Emergencies  

  7     0 

 

Personnel Hours & Overtime:   

Regular Hours Overtime 

1567   41 

# of Active 

Lift Stations 
# of Inactive 

Lift Stations                SSO         
Wastewater 

Received (MG) 

15 0 0 39 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 6  

 

 

TERMS 

 

WWTP    WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 

WTP   WATER TREAMENT PLANT 

 

WL   WILLOW LAKE 

 

NP   NEWPORT  

 

VFD   VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVE 

 

WO   WORK ORDER 

 

PLC   PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC CONTROLLER 

 

L/S   LIFT STATION 

 

SSO                                SANITARY SEWER OVERFLOW 

 

BOD   BIOLOGICAL OXYGEN DEMAND 

 

TSS   TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS 

 

MGD   MILLION GALLONS PER DAY 

 

mg/l   MILLIGRAMS PER LITRE 

 

CCTV   CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION 

 

PPM   PARTS PER MILLION 

 

RAS   RETURN ACTIVATED SLUDGE 

 

WAS   WATSE ACTIVATED SLUDGE 

 

UV                                   ULTRAVIOLET LIGHT 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item E-1



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 15, 2017 

 
Prepared By:     Dina Breitstein, Finance Manager    
Submitted By:   Mike Davies, General Manager 

 
Agenda Title 
 
Audited Financial Statements: Receive report from the District’s Auditor and consider approving the FY 2015-16 Audited 
Financial Statements 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve and accept the FY 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements  
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of California Government Code §26909(b), the Town of Discovery Bay CSD is required to 
conduct an annual audit of its financial statements.  Additionally, the audit must also be provided to the State of 
California Controller’s Office and the Contra Costa County Auditor’s Office. 
 
On March 15, 2017, Croce, Sanguinetti, and Vander Veen presents the DRAFT year-end audit for Fiscal Year 2015-16.  
The draft audit contained the findings and results from the audited financial statements for the period July 1, 2015 
through June 30, 2016. 
 
At this time, it is appropriate to accept the findings of the FY 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements and direct Croce, 
Sanguinetti, and Vander Veen to forward the final audit to the State Controller’s Office and the Contra Costa County 
Auditor’s Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #   Category:         
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Final - Financial Statements & Independent Auditors’ Report - Letter to the Board of Directors 
2. Management Letter 
3. Final - Financial Statements & Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: F-1 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0CCYQFjAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcsvcpas.com%2F&ei=kdx7U4rtOsyhyASGj4GIBA&usg=AFQjCNE0QYBlCFoGiD_rAsSQ8wdZA6A4Ww&bvm=bv.67229260,d.aWw
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0CCYQFjAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcsvcpas.com%2F&ei=kdx7U4rtOsyhyASGj4GIBA&usg=AFQjCNE0QYBlCFoGiD_rAsSQ8wdZA6A4Ww&bvm=bv.67229260,d.aWw
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0CCYQFjAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcsvcpas.com%2F&ei=kdx7U4rtOsyhyASGj4GIBA&usg=AFQjCNE0QYBlCFoGiD_rAsSQ8wdZA6A4Ww&bvm=bv.67229260,d.aWw
Cinderella
Stamp



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



 

 

 

 

 

March 1, 2017 

 

 

 

Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. 

3520 Brookside Road, Suite 141 

Stockton, California 95219 

 

 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (the District), which comprise the 

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of June 30, 2016, and the respective 

changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, and the 

related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the 

financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.   

 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  

Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 

accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 

judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the 

omission or misstatement.  An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could 

be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 

 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of February 25, 2017, the following 

representations made to you during your audit. 

 

Financial Statements 
 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter 

dated November 1, 2016, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America. 

 

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include all 

properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and all 

component units required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America to be included in the financial reporting entity. 

 

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 

internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 

internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

 

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 

at fair value, are reasonable. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, 

loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or 

payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 

accordance with the requirements of the accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America. 

 

7. Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of 

noncompliance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require 

adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. 

 

8. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been 

accounted for and disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America. 

 

9. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the District is contingently liable, if any, 

have been properly recorded or disclosed. 

 

Information Provided 

 

10. We have provided you with:  

 

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and 

fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other 

matters and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding 

sources. 

 

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom you determined it 

necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or summaries of actions of recent 

meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

 

11. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 

the financial statements. 

 

12. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 

statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

13. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the District and 

involves: 

 

a. Management, 

 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or  

 

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

14. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the 

District’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, 

or others. 

 

15. We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects 

should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

 

16. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments 

whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

 

17. We have disclosed to you the identity of the District’s related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

 

Government - Specific 

 

18. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance 

with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 

 

19. We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies 

related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been 

implemented.  

 

20. The District has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 

classification of assets, liabilities, or equity. 

 

21. We are responsible for the District’s compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions 

of contracts and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt 

contracts, and legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate 

funds.  

 

22. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to 

have occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we 

believe have a material effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant 

to the audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the attention of those charged 

with governance. 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

23. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to 

have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contract and grant agreements that we 

believe have a material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other 

financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

 

24. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to 

have occurred, of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the 

financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

 

25. There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations 

(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of 

contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose 

effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for 

recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance. 

 

26. As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related 

notes.  We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including 

that we assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an 

individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, 

or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept 

responsibility for the results of the services. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted 

responsibility for those financial statements and related notes. 

 

27. The District has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances 

on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 

 

28. The District has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a 

material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

 

29. The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an 

equity interest, and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related 

organizations. 

 

30. The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities, in accordance with 

GASB Statement No. 34. 

 

31. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for 

presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are 

presented as major are particularly important to financial statement users. 

 

32. Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted) 

and classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and 

unassigned) are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

 

33. Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are 

properly valued. 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

34. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded. 
 

35. Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in 

the statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 
 

36. Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program 

revenues, general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or 

contributions to permanent fund principal. 
 

37. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified 

and reported. 
 

38. Special and extraordinary items are appropriately classified and reported, if applicable. 
 

39. Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to 

risk and are properly disclosed. 
 

40. Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, 

reported, and, if applicable, depreciated. 
 

41. We have appropriately disclosed the District’s policy regarding whether to first apply 

restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both 

restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is 

properly recognized under the policy. 
 

42. We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI).  The 

RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the measurement and 

presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period.  We have disclosed to 

you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and 

presentation of the RSI. 
 

43. We are following GASB Statement No. 54, paragraph 18, to determine the fund balance 

classifications for financial reporting purposes. 
 

44. We have informed you of all claims or assessments made against the District by the 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board. 
 

45. In regards to the preparation of the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report, 

prepared by you, we have -  
 

1. Assumed all management responsibilities. 
 

2. Designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the 

services. 
 

3. Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed. 
 

4. Accepted responsibility for the result of the services. 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

46. The adjusting journal entries for the period ended June 30, 2016, which have been 

proposed by you, are approved by us and will be recorded on the books of the District. 

 

 

 

 

Signed     

 District Financial Manager 

 

 

Signed     

 District General Manager 

Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF  REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 15, 2017 

 
Prepared By:     Dina Breitstein, Finance Manager  
Submitted By:   Mike Davies, General Manager 
 
Agenda Title:   
 

Consider approving agreement with Urban Futures Inc. 
 

Recommended Action 
 
Approve the General Manager to engage Urban Futures Inc. to provide the District with both Continuing Disclosure and 
Dissemination Agent Services 
 
  
Executive Summary 
 

On August 28, 2012 the District signed a Continuing Disclosure Certificate between the Town of Discovery Bay and 
Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, as the dissemination agent.  US Bank succeeded Deutsche bank National 
Trust Company in August 2013.  Since the succession, US Bank has been remiss in its duties as the District’s 
Dissemination Agent.   
 
On October 5, 2016 The Board of Director’s Authorized the Interim General Manager to engage in an agreement with Brandis 
Tallman, LLC. for Bond Underwriting Services; authorizing the commencement of proceedings in connection with the 
execution and delivery of water & wastewater bond obligations.   
 
Throughout the bond proceedings, District Staff has had frequent discussions with the bond financing team regarding the 
District’s Continuing Disclosure and Dissemination Agent.  Due to the lack of knowledgeable assistance provided by our 
current dissemination agent US Bank, Brandis Tallman requested proposals from companies to assist the District with 
continuing disclosure and dissemination.  Under recommendation, the Town of Discovery Bay would like to end our agreement 
with US Bank and engage Urban Futures, Inc. to provide Service for bond covenant requirements.  
 
Urban Futures, Inc. will provide the district with updated financial information and mandatory disclosures to municipal market 
participants on a regular basis.  They will ensure that the District remains in full compliance with mandatory continuing 
disclosure covenants and other requirements.  Urban Futures, Inc. is an industry recognized leader in bond compliance, 
developing industry releases on changes in regulation and best practices.   
 
Urban Futures, Inc. has over 20 years of experience providing dissemination agent services to over 150 public agencies, 
clients totaling over 500 annual disclosure reports, a function which includes continuing disclosure duties.   
 
Urban Futures, Inc.  Fees: 

 

Town of Discovery 
Bay CSD 

Preparation of 
Reports 

Dissemination of 
Reports & Notices 

Rea-Time Ratings 
Monitoring 

Total Annual Fee 

2012 Bond $350 $275 $150 $775 

2017 Bond $350 275 $150 $775 

Total Proposed Fee $700 $550 $300 $1,550 

 
Currently the District pays US Bank an annual fee of $1,500 to act as Dissemination Agent for the 2012 bond.   
 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
Attachments 
Proposal from Urban Futures, Inc.   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: F-2 

Cinderella
Stamp



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-2



Agenda Item F-3



 

 

DRAFT LETTER 
 
Dear Senator Glazer: 
 
Our local Fire District (ECCFPD) continues to struggle financially and this has resulted 
in a systematic shut down of fire stations and reductions of available emergency 
services. 
 
While there is no shortage of reasons and explanations for the current conditions, it is 
imperative that we work together toward achievable and swift solutions. 
   
While we recognize an imbalance of funding, the imbalance itself exists only between 
the fire districts of our County - not between special districts and other agencies as a 
whole. 
 
Any proposed reallocation of property tax revenues could lead to more shortfalls in 
other critical services.  Undeniably a unilateral reallocation of property taxes would 
spread funding shortfalls to all other service providers and government 
entities.  "Robbing Peter to pay Paul" or reallocation, is a zero-sum game. 
 
Further, we recognize that transferring revenue between certain agencies is illegal 
under California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 5 Article 99.   
 
Exacerbating the issue is the acknowledgement that School Districts and education, 
which are allocated the majority of available taxes, are off limits to reallocation.  This 
would shift the majority of reallocation to agencies already operating with smaller 
fractions/percentages of tax apportionment. 
   
We highly encourage the State and our local legislators to explore all available 
solutions.   One solution might be the possibility of lowering the voter threshold for 
passage of revenue enhancements for Fire and Emergency Services from a super 
majority to a simple majority.  As you are aware, this has been done for education 
bonds due to their essential nature.  We feel that lifesaving emergency services are also 
essential to the wellbeing of the community.   
   
Our CSD remains supportive of fair and realistic revenue enhancements to stabilize and 
restore our fire services.  
 
Send to: 
Governor Jerry Brown 
Assembly Members Frazier and Baker 
Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors 
City of Brentwood/Oakley 
East Contra Costa Fire Protection District 
Contra Costa County Fire Protection District 
Local media 

Agenda Item F-3



Agenda Item K-1



Agenda Item K-1



 

  10944477.1 

 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:  
Friday March 3, 2017 

 

CONTACT: Hugh Henderson, Fire Chief 
East Contra Costa Fire Protection District  

(925) 260-7503

East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Board Appoints 
Battalion Chief Brian Helmick to Interim Fire Chief 

 
Brentwood—The East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Board of Directors held a special 
meeting on Friday to hold a closed session on the appointment of an interim Fire Chief. The 
Board voted unanimously to move forward with promoting Battalion Chief Brian Helmick to 
Interim Fire Chief. The Board of Directors will approve the employment agreement at their 
regular board meeting on March 6, 2017. 

Battalion Chief Helmick started with East Contra Costa Fire Protection District as a firefighter in 
2002 and worked through the ranks. Chief Helmick was promoted to Battalion Chief in July 2006 
and he currently is assigned as the District’s Operations Chief. Chief Helmick resides in 
Brentwood with his wife Kristen and three children. After the Board announced their decision 
Chief Helmick stated he is “excited about the opportunity and humbled by the Boards decision” 
he looks forward to working with District staff and becoming more connected with the 
community. ECCFPD President Joel Bryant expressed confidence in Chief Helmick’s qualifications 
and leadership ability. “We are very proud of Battalion Chief Helmick and look forward to the 
next chapter for our District”. 

Battalion Chief Helmick will assume the role of Interim Fire Chief upon retirement of Fire Chief 
Hugh Henderson on March 30, 2017. 

ABOUT THE EAST CONTRA COSTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT: The East Contra Costa Fire 
Protection District spans 249 square miles and our firefighter/EMTs serve more than 100,000 
residents in the Cities of Brentwood and Oakley, the Town of Discovery Bay, the communities of 
Byron, Bethel Island and Knightsen, the Marsh Creek/Morgan Territory area, and all other areas 
within unincorporated Contra Costa County to the east of Antioch and to the southeast of 
Clayton. 

### 

Agenda Item K-2


	03-15-17 Agenda Meeting Cover Sheet.pdf
	03-15-17 Agenda.pdf
	C-1 DRAFT Minutes regular and CS 03-01-17.pdf
	C-2-1 Staff Report Approve Register of District Invoices.pdf
	C-2-2 Copy of RFA Town Water Wastewater.pdf
	C-2-3 Copy of RFA LL #8.pdf
	C-2-4 Copy of RFA LL #9.pdf
	C-3-1 Staff Report 2017 Parks and Recreation Event Calendar.pdf
	C-3-2 Copy of 2017 Public.Event Calendar.pdf
	C-3-3 Policy 013 - Park and Facility Usage and Rental Revised 10-19-2016.pdf
	C-3-4 Policy 022 - District Recreation Facilities Alcohol.pdf
	C-4-1 Staff Report - Adopt Reso 2017-05 Approve Updated Schedules 3-15-2017.pdf
	C-4-2 Resolution - Adopt Resolution 2017-05 Rescinding Previous Reso 2014-26.pdf
	C-4-3 How to Use Retention Schedules    FY 16-17 Districts.pdf
	C-4-4 Retention Legend - FY-16-17 - Districts.pdf
	C-4-5 Updated Record Retention Schedules Per Department.pdf
	C-4-3 How to Use Retention Schedules    FY 16-17 Districts.pdf
	C-4-4 Retention Legend - FY-16-17 - Districts.pdf
	C-4-5 Discovery Bay - _DISTRICT WIDE_FY 16-17.pdf
	C-4-6 Discovery Bay - Finance_FY 16-17.pdf
	C-4-7 Discovery Bay - GM, IT & Board Clerk_FY 16-17.pdf
	C-4-8 Discovery Bay - Human Resources_FY 16-17.pdf
	C-4-9 Discovery Bay - Parks & Recreation_FY 16-17.pdf
	C-4-10 Discovery Bay - Water & Wastewater_FY 16-17.pdf

	C-5 Proclamation 17-02 - Fire Chief Hugh Henderson.pdf
	E-1 Veolia Report - Month February 2017.pdf
	F-1-1 Agenda Report Annual Audited Financial Statements for FY 2015-16.pdf
	F-1-2 Financial Statements Auditors’ Report - Letr to BOD.pdf
	F-1-3 Management Rep Letter.pdf
	F-1-4 Financial Statements & Independent Auditors’ Report.pdf
	F-2-1 Staff Report Urban Futures Agreement.pdf
	F-2-2 Proposal from Urban Futures, Inc..pdf
	F-3-1 DRAFT Letter 2017-03-15 Proposed re allocate ad valorem taxes requested ECCFPD.pdf
	F-3-2 Approved 2016-11-21 Re allocate ad valorem taxes requested ECCFPD.pdf
	K-1 SDRMA – Workers’ Compensation Longevity Distribution 2017-02-22.pdf
	K-2 Interim Fire Chief Helmick Press Release March 3 2017.pdf

